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Item 8.01. Other Events.
The Kraft Heinz Company (“Kraft Heinz”) is filing this Current Report on Form 8-K (this “Current Report”) to update the presentation of certain
financial information and related disclosures included in the Annual Report of Kraft Foods Group, Inc. (“Kraft”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 27, 2014, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 19, 2015 (the “Annual Report”). During the
quarter ended June 27, 2015, Kraft changed the presentation of its financial information to reflect a new organizational structure and definition
of segment operating income. Under this new organizational structure, Kraft began managing and reporting its operating results through five
reportable segments: Cheese, Beverages & Snack Nuts, Refrigerated Meals, Meal Solutions, and International. Its remaining businesses,
including its U.S. and Canadian Foodservice businesses, were aggregated as “Other Businesses”. In addition, Kraft's segment operating
income measure was recast to exclude the impacts of cost savings initiatives expenses. Kraft operated under this organizational structure until
the closing of its merger with H.J. Heinz Corporation on July 2, 2015.

This Current Report and the exhibit included as Exhibit 99.1 provide segment reporting financial information for the above segments with
respect to the historical financial information included in Kraft's Annual Report. This historical financial information is consistent with the
segment presentation set forth in Kraft's financial information for the quarter ended June 27, 2015, which was filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 10, 2015 on Form 8-K by Kraft Heinz.

This Current Report does not reflect any other changes, activities or events occurring subsequent to the initial filing of Kraft's Annual Report on
February 19, 2015 and does not modify or update the disclosures therein in any way, other than as required to reflect the segment changes as
described above and set forth in the exhibit included as Exhibit 99.1. For information on developments since the filing of Kraft's Annual Report,
please refer to Kraft's and Kraft Heinz's filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Unaffected items and unaffected portions of Kraft's Annual Report have not been repeated in, and are not amended or modified by, this Current
Report or Exhibit 99.1.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

(d) The following exhibits are filed with this Current Report on Form 8-K.

   

Exhibit No.   Description
23.1

 
Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

99.1   Kraft Foods Group's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 27, 2014, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 19, 2015, recast solely to
reflect the changes in segment reporting in the following Items: Part I Item 1. Business, Part II
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations, and Part II Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

101.1

 

The following materials from Kraft Foods Group’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 27, 2014 formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i)
the Consolidated Statements of Earnings, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Earnings, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
(v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.



SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

 The Kraft Heinz Company
   

Date: August 10, 2015 By: /s/ Paulo Basilio
  Paulo Basilio

  
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-205481) of The Kraft Heinz Company
of our report dated February 19, 2015 except with respect to our opinion on the consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to the
effects of the changes in the composition of reportable segments described in Notes 4, 5 and 15 as to which the date is August 10, 2015,
relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, of Kraft Foods
Group, Inc., which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K of The Kraft Heinz Company dated August 10, 2015.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Chicago, Illinois 
August 10, 2015



Exhibit 99.1

EXPLANATORY NOTE

The Kraft Heinz Company (the “Company”) is filing this exhibit (the “Exhibit”) to reflect changes to the presentation of Kraft Foods Group, Inc.’s
(“Kraft Foods”) financial information as set forth in Kraft Foods’ Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 27, 2014 ("Annual
Report"), as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on February 19, 2015. This Exhibit is being filed solely to present
recast segment reporting financial information to reflect organizational structure changes implemented during Kraft Foods’ second quarter of
2015. No other changes have been made to the Annual Report. This Exhibit speaks as of the original filing date of the Annual Report, does not
reflect events that may have occurred to Kraft Foods subsequent to the original filing date, and does not modify or update in any way the
disclosures made in the Annual Report other than as required to reflect the segment changes or any of Kraft Foods’ SEC filings.



Kraft Foods Group, Inc.

Table of Contents

  Page No.
Part I -   
Item 1. Business 1
Part II -   
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 6

 Description of the Company 6

 Consolidated Results of Operations 6

 Results of Operations by Reportable Segment 9

 Critical Accounting Policies 13

 New Accounting Pronouncements 16

 Contingencies 16

 Commodity Trends 16

 Liquidity and Capital Resources 16

 Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations 17

 Equity and Dividends 18

 Non-GAAP Financial Measures 19
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 21

 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 21

 
Consolidated Statements of Earnings for the Years Ended December 27, 2014,

December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012 22

 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings for the Years Ended 

December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012 23

 Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 24

 
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Years Ended December 27, 2014,

December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012 25

 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 27, 2014,
December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012 26

 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 27

 Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-1

In this report, “Kraft Foods Group,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refers to Kraft Foods Group, Inc.

i



Forward-looking Statements

This report contains a number of forward-looking statements. Words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,” “believe,” “may,” “will,”
and variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify our forward-looking statements. You are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date on which they are made. Examples of forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, statements, beliefs, and expectations regarding our business, customers, consumers, dividends,
projected market performance of our common stock related to performance share awards, new accounting pronouncements and accounting
changes, commodity costs, cost savings initiatives, hedging activities, legal matters, goodwill and other intangible assets, price volatility and
cost environment, liquidity, funding sources, postemployment benefit plans, including expected contributions, obligations, rates of return and
costs, capital expenditures and funding, debt, off-balance sheet arrangements and contractual obligations, general views about future operating
results, our risk management program, and other events or developments that we expect or anticipate will occur in the future.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control. We discuss certain factors that affect our business and operations and that may cause our actual results to differ
materially from these forward-looking statements under “Risk Factors” below in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These factors include, but
are not limited to, increased competition; our ability to maintain, extend and expand our reputation and brand image; our ability to differentiate
our products from other brands; increasing consolidation of retail customers; changes in relationships with our significant customers and
suppliers; our ability to predict, identify and interpret changes in consumer preferences and demand; our ability to drive revenue growth in our
key product categories, increase our market share, or add products; an impairment of goodwill or other indefinite-lived intangible assets;
volatility in commodity, energy and other input costs; changes in our management team or other key personnel; our geographic focus in North
America; changes in regulations; legal claims or other regulatory enforcement actions; product recalls or product liability claims; unanticipated
business disruptions; our ability to complete or realize the benefits from potential acquisitions, alliances, divestitures or joint ventures; our
indebtedness and our ability to pay our indebtedness; disruptions in our information technology networks and systems; our inability to protect
our intellectual property rights; weak economic conditions; tax law changes; volatility of market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans;
pricing actions; and other factors. We disclaim and do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement in this
report, except as required by applicable law or regulation.

PART I

Item 1. Business.

General

Kraft Foods Group is one of the largest consumer packaged food and beverage companies in North America and worldwide, with net revenues
of $18.2 billion and earnings before income taxes of $1.4 billion in 2014. We manufacture and market food and beverage products, including
cheese, meats, refreshment beverages, coffee, packaged dinners, refrigerated meals, snack nuts, dressings, and other grocery products,
primarily in the United States and Canada, under a host of iconic brands. Our product categories span breakfast, lunch, and dinner meal
occasions. At December 27, 2014, we had assets of $22.9 billion. We are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market and included in the Standard &
Poor’s 500 and the NASDAQ - 100 indices.

Our diverse brand portfolio consists of many of the most popular food brands in North America, including three brands with annual net
revenues exceeding $1 billion each—Kraft cheeses, dinners, and dressings; Oscar Mayer meats; and Philadelphia cream cheese—plus over
25 brands with annual net revenues between $100 million and $1 billion each. In the United States, based on dollar share in 2014, we hold the
number one branded market share position in 11 of our top 17 product categories and the number two branded market share position in the
remaining six product categories. The 11 product categories with the number one branded share position contributed more than 50% of our
2014 U.S. retail net revenues while our top 17 product categories contributed more than 80% of our 2014 U.S. retail net revenues.

We were initially organized as a Delaware corporation in 1980. In March 2012, we redomesticated to Virginia and changed our name from
“Kraft Foods Global, Inc.” to “Kraft Foods Group, Inc.” On October 1, 2012, Mondelēz International, Inc. ("Mondelēz International," formerly
known as Kraft Foods Inc.) spun-off Kraft Foods Group to Mondelēz International’s shareholders (the “Spin-Off”). We were a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Mondelēz
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International prior to the Spin-Off. To effect the Spin-Off, Mondelēz International distributed all of the shares of Kraft Foods Group common
stock owned by Mondelēz International to its shareholders on October 1, 2012. As a result of the Spin-Off, we began operating as an
independent, publicly traded company on October 1, 2012.

Reportable Segments

We manage and report our operating results through five reportable segments: Cheese, Beverages & Snack Nuts, Refrigerated Meals, Meal
Solutions, and International. Our remaining businesses, including our U.S. and Canadian Foodservice businesses, are aggregated and
disclosed as “Other Businesses”.

Our principal brands and products at December 27, 2014 were:

   

Cheese

  

Kraft and Cracker Barrel natural cheeses; Philadelphia cream cheese; Kraft and
Deli Deluxe processed cheese slices; Velveeta and Cheez Whiz processed cheeses; Kraft grated and
shredded cheeses; Polly-O and Athenos cheeses; and Breakstone’s and Knudsen cottage cheese
and sour cream.

  
Beverages & Snack Nuts

  

Maxwell House, Gevalia, and Yuban coffees; Tassimo hot beverage system (under license); Capri
Sun (under license) and Kool-Aid packaged juice drinks; Crystal Light, Kool-Aid, and Country
Time powdered beverages; MiO, Crystal Light, and Kool-Aid liquid concentrates; and Planters nuts
and trail mixes.

  
Refrigerated Meals

  
Oscar Mayer cold cuts, hot dogs, bacon, and P3 Portable Protein Packs; Lunchables lunch
combinations; Claussen pickles; and Boca meat alternatives.

   
Meal Solutions

  

Kraft and Kraft Deluxe macaroni and cheese dinners;Velveeta shells and cheese dinners; JELL-O dry
packaged desserts; JELL-O refrigerated gelatin and pudding snacks; Cool Whip whipped topping;
Stove Top stuffing mix; Jet-Puffed marshmallows; Velveeta Cheesy Skillets and Taco Bell Home
Originals (under license) meal kits; Shake ‘N Bake coatings; Baker’s chocolate and baking
ingredients; Kraft Mayo and Miracle Whip spoonable dressings; Kraft and Good Seasons salad
dressings; A.1. sauce; Kraft and Bull’s-Eye barbecue sauces; and Grey Poupon premium mustards.

   
International   A range of products bearing the same or similar brand names to those marketed in the U.S.
   
Other Businesses

 

Our other businesses sell certain food ingredients and a broad array of products to foodservice
customers including Philadelphia cream cheese; A.1. sauce; Kraft sauces, dressings, and cheeses. 

Net Revenues by Product Category

Product categories that contributed 10% or more to consolidated net revenues for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013, or
December 29, 2012, were:

  For the Years Ended

  December 27, 2014  December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012

Cheese and dairy  33%  32%  31%
Meat and meat alternatives  15%  15%  15%
Meals  11%  11%  11%
Refreshment beverages  10%  10%  10%
Enhancers  9%  9%  10%

See Note 15, Segment Reporting, to the consolidated financial statements for net revenues and earnings before income taxes by segment.
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Customers

We sell our products primarily to supermarket chains, wholesalers, supercenters, club stores, mass merchandisers, distributors, convenience
stores, drug stores, value stores, and other retail food outlets in the United States and Canada.

Our five largest customers accounted for approximately 42% of our net revenues in 2014. One of our customers, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.,
accounted for approximately 26% of our net revenues in 2014.

Sales

Our direct customer teams work with the headquarter operations of our customers and manage our relationships. These teams collaborate on
developing strategies for new item introduction, category and assortment management, shopper insights, shopper marketing, trade and
promotional planning, and retail pricing solutions. We have dedicated headquarter teams covering all of our product lines for many of our
largest customers, and we pool resources across our product lines to provide support to regional retailers.

Our breadth of product lines and scale throughout the retail environment are also supported primarily by two third-party sales agencies within
our customers’ stores: Acosta Sales & Marketing for our grocery and mass channel customers and CROSSMARK for our convenience store
retail partners. Both agencies act as extensions of our direct customer teams and are managed by our sales leadership. Both sales agencies
provide in-store support of product placement, distribution, and promotional execution.

We also utilize exporters, distributors, consolidators, or other similar arrangements to sell and distribute our products outside of the United
States and Canada.

Raw Materials and Packaging

We purchase and use large quantities of commodities, including dairy products, meat products, coffee beans, nuts, soybean and vegetable oils,
sugar and other sweeteners, corn products and wheat to manufacture our products. In addition, we purchase and use significant quantities of
resins and cardboard to package our products and natural gas to operate our facilities. For commodities that we use across many of our
product categories, such as corrugated paper and energy, we coordinate sourcing requirements and centralize procurement to leverage our
scale. In addition, some of our product lines and brands separately source raw materials that are specific to their operations.

We source these commodities from a variety of providers including large, international producers, and smaller, local independent sellers. We
have preferred purchaser status and/or have developed strategic partnerships with many of our suppliers, and consequently enjoy favorable
pricing and dependable supply for many of our commodities. The prices of raw materials and agricultural materials that we use in our products
are affected by external factors, such as global competition for resources, currency fluctuations, severe weather or global climate change,
consumer, industrial or investment demand, and changes in governmental regulation and trade, alternative energy, and agricultural programs.

The most significant cost components of our cheese products are dairy commodities, including milk and cheese. We purchase our dairy raw
material requirements from independent third parties, such as agricultural cooperatives and independent processors. Market supply and
demand, as well as government programs, significantly influence the prices for milk and other dairy products. The most significant cost
component of our coffee products is coffee beans, which we purchase on world markets. Quality and availability of supply, currency
fluctuations, and consumer demand for coffee products impact coffee bean prices. Significant cost components in our meat business include
pork, beef, and poultry, which we primarily purchase from domestic markets. Livestock feed costs and the global supply and demand for U.S.
meats influence the prices of these meat products. Additional significant cost components in our grocery products are grains (including wheat),
sugar, and soybean oil.

Our risk management group works with our procurement teams to monitor worldwide supply and cost trends so we can obtain ingredients and
packaging needed for production at competitive prices. Although the prices of our principal raw materials can be expected to fluctuate, we
believe there will be an adequate supply of the raw materials we use and that they are generally available from numerous sources. Our risk
management group uses a range of hedging techniques in an effort to limit the impact of price fluctuations on our principal raw materials.
However, we do not fully hedge against changes in commodity prices, and our hedging strategies may not protect
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us from increases in specific raw material costs. We actively monitor any changes to commodity costs so that we can seek to mitigate the effect
through pricing and other operational measures.

Manufacturing and Processing

We manufacture our products in our network of manufacturing and processing facilities located throughout North America. As of December 27,
2014, we operated 36 manufacturing and processing facilities, 34 in the United States and two in Canada. We own all 36 of these facilities.

While some of our plants are dedicated to the production of specific products or brands, other plants can accommodate multiple product lines.
We manufacture our Cheese products in 12 locations, our Beverages & Snack Nuts in 11 locations, our Refrigerated Meals products in nine
locations, and our Meal Solutions products in 12 locations. We maintain all of our manufacturing and processing facilities in good condition and
believe they are suitable and adequate for our present needs. We also enter into co-manufacturing arrangements with third parties if we
determine it is advantageous to outsource the production of any of our products.

Distribution

As of December 27, 2014, we distributed our products through 36 distribution centers, of which 33 are in the United States and three are in
Canada. We own four and lease 32 of these distribution centers. In addition, third-party logistics providers perform storage and distribution
services for us to support our distribution network.

We rely on common carriers to transport our products from our manufacturing and processing facilities to our distribution facilities and on to our
customers. Our distribution facilities generally accommodate all of our product lines and have the capacity to store refrigerated, dry, and frozen
goods. We assemble customer orders for multiple products at the distribution facilities and deliver them by common carrier to our customers.
We maintain all of our distribution facilities in good condition and believe they have sufficient capacity to meet our expected distribution needs.

Competition

We face competition in all aspects of our business. Competitors include large national and international companies and numerous local and
regional companies. We also compete with generic products and retailer brands, wholesalers, and cooperatives. We compete primarily on the
basis of product quality and innovation, brand recognition and loyalty, service, the ability to identify and satisfy consumer preferences, the
introduction of new products and the effectiveness of our advertising campaigns and marketing programs, and price. Improving our market
position or introducing a new product requires substantial advertising and promotional expenditures.

Trademarks and Intellectual Property

Our trademarks are material to our business and are among our most valuable assets. Some of our significant trademarks include A.1.,
Baker’s, Cheez Whiz, Cool Whip, Country Time, Cracker Barrel, Crystal Light, Grey Poupon, JELL-O, Kool-Aid, Kraft, Lunchables, MiO, Miracle
Whip, Oscar Mayer, Planters, Shake ‘N Bake, Stove Top, and Velveeta. We own the rights to these trademarks in the United States, Canada,
and many other countries throughout the world. In addition, we own the trademark rights to Philadelphia in the United States and the
Caribbean, and to Gevalia and Maxwell House throughout North America and Latin America. We protect our trademarks by registration or
otherwise in the United States, Canada, and other markets. From time to time, we grant third parties licenses to use one or more of our
trademarks in particular locations. Similarly, as of December 27, 2014, we sell some products under brands we license from third parties,
including:

• Capri Sun packaged drink pouches for sale in the United States;
• McCafé ground, whole bean and on-demand single cup coffees; and
• Taco Bell Home Originals Mexican-style food products for sale in U.S. grocery stores.

In connection with the Spin-Off, we granted Mondelēz International licenses to use some of our trademarks in particular locations outside of the
United States and Canada and we also may sell some products under brands we license from Mondelēz International.

Additionally, we own numerous patents worldwide. We consider our portfolio of patents, patent applications, patent licenses under patents
owned by third parties, proprietary trade secrets, technology, know-how processes, and related intellectual property rights to be material to our
operations. While our patent portfolio is material to our business, the loss of one patent or a group of related patents would not have a material
adverse effect on our
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business. We either have been issued patents or have patent applications pending that relate to a number of current and potential products,
including products licensed to others. Patents, issued or applied for, cover inventions ranging from basic packaging techniques to processes
relating to specific products and to the products themselves.

Our issued patents extend for varying periods according to the date of the patent application filing or grant and the legal term of patents in the
various countries where patent protection is obtained. The actual protection afforded by a patent, which can vary from country to country,
depends upon the type of patent, the scope of its coverage as determined by the patent office or courts in the country, and the availability of
legal remedies in the country. In connection with the Spin-Off, we granted Mondelēz International licenses to use some of our patents, and we
also license certain patents from Mondelēz International.

Research and Development

Our research and development focuses on achieving the following four objectives:

• growth through product improvements and renovations, new products, and line extensions,
• uncompromising product safety and quality,
• superior customer satisfaction, and
• cost reduction.

Our research and development specialists have historically focused on both major product innovation and more modestly-scaled line
extensions, such as the introduction of new flavors, colors, or package designs for established products. We have approximately 600 food
scientists, chemists, and engineers, with teams dedicated to particular brands and products.

We maintain three key technology centers, each equipped with pilot plants and state-of-the-art instruments. Research and development
expense was approximately $149 million in 2014, $142 million in 2013, and $143 million in 2012. The amounts disclosed in prior periods have
been revised to conform with the current year presentation.

Seasonality

Overall sales of our products are fairly balanced throughout the year, although demand for certain products may be influenced by holidays,
changes in seasons, or other annual events.

Employees

We have approximately 22,100 employees, of whom approximately 20,100 are located in the United States and approximately 2,000 are
located in Canada. Approximately one-third of our hourly employees are represented under contracts primarily with the United Food and
Commercial Workers International Union and the International Brotherhood of Teamsters. These contracts expire at various times throughout
the next several years. We believe that our relationships with employees and their representative organizations are generally good.

Regulation

Our U.S. food and beverage products and packaging materials are primarily regulated by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration or, for
products containing meat and poultry, the U.S. Food Safety and Inspection Service of the U.S. Department of Agriculture. Our Canadian food
products and packaging materials are primarily regulated by the Canadian Food Inspection Agency and Health Canada. These agencies enact
and enforce regulations relating to the manufacturing, distribution, and labeling of food products.

The U.S. Food Safety Modernization Act and the Safe Food for Canadians Act, both of which became laws in 2011, provide additional food
safety authority to the applicable regulatory agency. We do not expect the cost of complying with these laws, and the implementing regulations
expected to result from these laws, to be material.

In addition, various U.S. states and Canadian provinces regulate our operations by licensing plants, enforcing standards for selected food
products, grading food products, inspecting plants and warehouses, regulating trade practices related to the sale of dairy products, and
imposing their own labeling requirements on food products. Many of the food commodities we use in our operations are subject to
governmental agricultural programs. These programs have substantial effects on prices and supplies and are subject to periodic governmental
and administrative review.
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Environmental Regulation

We are subject to various federal, provincial, state, and local laws and regulations in the United States and Canada relating to the protection of
the environment, including those governing discharges to air and water, the management and disposal of hazardous materials, and the cleanup
of contaminated sites.

These laws and regulations include the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (“CERCLA”). CERCLA imposes joint and severable liability on each
potentially responsible party. As of December 27, 2014, we were involved in 56 active proceedings in the United States under CERCLA (and
other similar state actions and legislation) related to our current operations and certain closed, inactive, or divested operations for which we
retain liability. We do not currently expect these to have a material effect on our earnings or financial condition.

As of December 27, 2014, we had accrued an amount we deemed appropriate for environmental remediation. Based on information currently
available, we believe that the ultimate resolution of existing environmental remediation actions and our compliance in general with
environmental laws and regulations will not have a material effect on our earnings or financial condition. However, it is difficult to predict with
certainty the potential impact of future compliance efforts and environmental remedial actions and thus future costs associated with such
matters may exceed current reserves.

Foreign Operations

We sell our products primarily to consumers in the United States and Canada, but also sell our products to many other countries and territories
across the globe. We generated approximately 13% of our 2014 consolidated net revenues and 14% of our 2013 and 2012 consolidated net
revenues outside the United States, primarily in Canada. For additional information about our foreign operations, see Note 15, Segment
Reporting, to the consolidated financial statements.

PART II

Item 7.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the other sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the consolidated
financial statements and related notes contained in Item 8.

Description of the Company

We manufacture and market food and beverage products, including cheese, meats, refreshment beverages, coffee, packaged dinners,
refrigerated meals, snack nuts, dressings, and other grocery products, primarily in the United States and Canada. Our product categories span
breakfast, lunch, and dinner meal occasions.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Summary of Results

 For the Years Ended    

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  2014 v. 2013  2013 v. 2012

 (in millions, except per share data)     

Net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  $ 18,271  (0.1)%  (0.3)%
Operating income $ 1,890  $ 4,591  $ 2,670  (58.8)%  71.9 %
Net earnings $ 1,043  $ 2,715  $ 1,642  (61.6)%  65.3 %
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.74  $ 4.51  $ 2.75  (61.4)%  64.0 %
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Net Revenues

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  (0.1)%  $ 18,218  $ 18,271  (0.3)%
Impact of foreign currency 156  —  0.9pp  73  —  0.4pp
Sales to Mondelēz International (134)  (147)  0.1pp  (147)  (114)  (0.2)pp

Organic Net Revenues (1) $ 18,227  $ 18,071  0.9 %  $ 18,144  $ 18,157  (0.1)%

Net pricing     1.2pp      (0.6)pp
Volume/mix     (0.3)pp      0.5pp

(1) Organic Net Revenues is a non-GAAP financial measure. See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues were essentially flat. Organic Net Revenues increased by 0.9%, despite economic and consumer trends that continue to
pressure the North American food and beverage industry. While we realized the benefit of significant pricing actions, our results also reflected
the volume loss impact of those pricing actions. Higher net pricing (1.2 pp) was driven by commodity costs (primarily dairy), partially offset by
increased promotional activity in Meal Solutions and Beverages & Snack Nuts. Unfavorable volume/mix (0.3 pp) was driven by Meal Solutions,
reflecting changing consumer preferences and increased competitive activity, and Cheese, reflecting the volume loss from higher net pricing,
mostly offset by favorable volume/mix in all other reportable segments.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues and Organic Net Revenues were essentially flat as lower net pricing was generally offset by favorable volume/mix. Lower net
pricing (0.6 pp) was due primarily to increased competitive activity in Beverages & Snack Nuts, partially offset by higher net pricing in
Refrigerated Meals. Favorable volume/mix (0.5 pp) was driven primarily by base business growth, despite an unfavorable product line pruning
impact of approximately one percentage point.

Operating Income

 
Operating

Income  
Operating

Income  2014 v. 2013  2013 v. 2012

 (in millions)  (percentage point)

Operating Income for the Years Ended
December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 $ 4,591  $ 2,670     

Change in volume/mix (97)  40  (2.9
)
pp  1.2 pp

Higher / (lower) net pricing 219  (109)  6.6 pp  (3.4
)
pp

(Higher) / lower product costs (173)  72  (5.2
)
pp  2.3 pp

Lower selling, general and administrative expenses 200  131  6.1 pp  4.1 pp
Lower expenses for cost savings initiatives 183  13  6.1 pp  0.8 pp

Change in unrealized gains / losses on hedging activities (100)  8  (3.1
)
pp  0.2 pp

Change in market-based impacts to postemployment 
benefit plans (2,902)  1,784  (65.4

)
pp  67.2 pp

Change in other (31)  (18)  (1.0
)
pp  (0.5

)
pp

Operating Income for the Years Ended
December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 $ 1,890  $ 4,591  (58.8)%  71.9%

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Higher product costs were driven by higher commodity costs (primarily dairy and packaging materials), partially offset by lower manufacturing
costs driven by net productivity and favorable retirement-related benefit adjustments primarily resulting from lower-than-expected claims
experience in 2014.
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Lower selling, general and administrative expenses were driven primarily by lower marketing spending.

Cost savings initiatives expenses were $107 million in 2014 compared to $290 million in 2013. Cost savings initiatives are related to
reorganization activities including severance, asset disposals, and other activities that do not qualify for special accounting treatment as exit or
disposal activities. Included within cost savings initiatives are activities related to the previously disclosed multi-year restructuring program. For
additional information about cost savings initiatives, see Note 5, Cost Savings Initiatives, to the consolidated financial statements.

Unrealized gains / losses on hedging activities, which includes unrealized gains and losses on our derivatives not designated as hedging
instruments as well as the ineffective portion of unrealized gains and losses on our derivatives designated as hedging instruments, amounted
to losses of $79 million in 2014 compared to gains of $21 million in 2013.

The $2,902 million unfavorable change in market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans reflects 2014 losses of $1,341 million
compared to 2013 gains of $1,561 million. The 2014 losses were due primarily to a 70 basis point weighted average decrease in the discount
rate and an unfavorable impact from updated mortality assumptions, partially offset by excess asset returns. The 2013 gains were driven by an
80 basis point weighted average increase in the discount rate and excess asset returns, partially offset by unfavorable changes in actuarial
assumptions.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Lower product costs reflected lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity, partially offset by higher commodity costs (primarily dairy
and meat products).

Lower selling, general and administrative expenses reflected lower overhead costs driven by cost management efforts, partially offset by higher
marketing spending and the costs of operating as an independent public company (which were not part of our cost profile in the first three
quarters of 2012).

The $1,784 million favorable change in market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans was due to 2013 gains of $1,561 million versus
2012 losses of $223 million. The 2013 gains were primarily driven by an 80 basis point weighted average increase in the discount rate and
excess asset returns, partially offset by unfavorable changes in actuarial assumptions. The 2012 losses were due to unfavorable changes in
actuarial assumptions, partially offset by excess asset returns.

Net Earnings and Diluted Earnings per Share

Net earnings decreased 61.6% to $1,043 million in 2014 and increased 65.3% to $2,715 million in 2013.

 Diluted EPS  Diluted EPS

Diluted EPS for the Years Ended December 28, 2013 and December 29, 2012 $ 4.51  $ 2.75
Change in results from operations 0.16  0.14
Lower expenses for cost savings initiatives, net of taxes 0.18  0.02
Change in unrealized gains / losses on hedging activities (0.11)  0.01
Change in market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans, net taxes (3.08)  1.90
Change in interest and other expense, net 0.02  (0.27)
Change in royalty income from Mondelēz International —  (0.04)
Change in taxes 0.08  0.03
Change in other (0.02)  (0.03)

Diluted EPS for the Years Ended December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 $ 1.74  $ 4.51

The increase in interest and other expense, net in 2013 compared to 2012 was due to the $6.0 billion debt issuance in June 2012, the $3.6
billion debt exchange in July 2012, and the $0.4 billion transfer of debt from Mondelēz International in October 2012. We incurred a full year of
interest and other expense, net in 2013 compared to only a partial year in 2012 related to this debt.

Our effective tax rate was 25.8% in 2014, 33.6% in 2013, and 33.1% in 2012. See Note 12, Income Taxes, to the consolidated financial
statements for a discussion of tax rates.
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Results of Operations by Reportable Segment

We manage and report operating results through five reportable segments: Cheese, Beverages & Snack Nuts, Refrigerated Meals, Meal
Solutions, and International. Our remaining businesses, including our U.S. and Canadian Foodservice businesses, are aggregated and
disclosed as “Other Businesses”.

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Net revenues:      
Cheese $ 4,066  $ 3,925  $ 3,829
Beverages & Snack Nuts 3,628  3,664  3,711
Refrigerated Meals 3,433  3,334  3,280
Meal Solutions 3,216  3,423  3,538
International 2,304  2,372  2,318
Other Businesses 1,558  1,500  1,595

Net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  $ 18,271

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Operating income:      
Cheese $ 675  $ 721  $ 716
Beverages & Snack Nuts 545  504  416
Refrigerated Meals 409  364  409
Meal Solutions 1,073  1,130  1,259
International 451  463  371
Other Businesses 188  172  143

Market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans (1,341)  1,561  (223)
Certain other postemployment benefit plan income / (expense) 164  61  (82)
Unrealized (losses) / gains on hedging activities (79)  21  13
General corporate expenses (88)  (116)  (49)
Cost savings initiatives expenses (107)  (290)  (303)

Operating income $ 1,890  $ 4,591  $ 2,670

Management uses segment operating income to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. We believe it is appropriate to
disclose this measure to help investors analyze segment performance and trends. Segment operating income excludes the following for each
of the periods presented:

• Market-based impacts and certain other components of our postemployment benefit plans (which are a component of cost of sales and
selling, general and administrative expenses) because we centrally manage postemployment benefit plan funding decisions and the
determination of discount rates, expected rate of return on plan assets, and other actuarial assumptions.

• Unrealized gains and losses on hedging activities (which are a component of cost of sales) in order to provide better transparency of
our segment operating results. Unrealized gains and losses on hedging activities, which includes unrealized gains and losses on our
derivatives not designated as hedging instruments as well as the ineffective portion of unrealized gains and losses on our derivatives
designated as hedging instruments, are recorded in Corporate until realized. Once realized, the gains and losses are recorded within
the applicable segment operating results.
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• Certain general corporate expenses (which are a component of selling, general and administrative expenses) and cost savings
initiatives expenses (which are components of asset impairment and exit costs, cost of sales, and selling, general and administrative
expenses).

Cheese

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 4,066  $ 3,925  3.6 %  $ 3,925  $ 3,829  2.5%
Organic Net Revenues(1) 4,021  3,874  3.8 %  3,874  3,817  1.5%
Segment operating income 675  721  (6.4)%  721  716  0.7%

(1) See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues increased 3.6%, driven by higher commodity cost-driven pricing (6.4 pp), partially offset by unfavorable volume/mix (2.6 pp).
Unfavorable volume/mix reflected volume loss from price increases, particularly in recipe cheese, sandwich cheese, and cream cheese,
partially offset by an increase in shipments of snacking cheese following a 2013 recall.

Segment operating income decreased 6.4% due to record high dairy costs, unfavorable volume/mix, and higher manufacturing costs, partially
offset by higher net pricing and lower spending on marketing activities.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues increased 2.5%, which included the impact of higher sales to Mondelēz International (1.0 pp). Organic Net Revenues increased
1.5%, driven primarily by favorable volume/mix (1.6 pp) as higher shipments of natural cheese and sandwich cheese were partially offset by
lower shipments of snacking cheese, due in part to a voluntary string cheese recall.

Segment operating income increased 0.7% as lower marketing spending, lower overhead costs, favorable volume/mix, and lower
manufacturing costs driven by net productivity were partially offset by increased commodity costs.

Beverages & Snack Nuts

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 3,628  $ 3,664  (1.0)%  $ 3,664  $ 3,711  (1.3)%
Organic Net Revenues(1) 3,628  3,656  (0.8)%  3,656  3,708  (1.4)%
Segment operating income 545  504  8.1 %  504  416  21.2 %

(1) See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues decreased 1.0%, as lower net pricing (2.3 pp) was partially offset by favorable volume/mix (1.5 pp). Lower net pricing reflected
increased promotional spending in refreshment beverages and lower net pricing in roast and ground coffee. Favorable volume/mix was driven
by growth in on-demand coffee products, snack nuts, and ready-to-drink beverages, partially offset by lower shipments of roast and ground
coffee.

Segment operating income increased 8.1%, due primarily to lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity, lower marketing spending,
and lower commodity costs, partially offset by lower net pricing.
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Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues decreased 1.3%, due to lower net pricing (5.2 pp), partially offset by favorable volume/mix (3.8 pp). Lower net pricing was due
primarily to lower net pricing in coffee, increased promotions in ready-to-drink beverages, lower commodity cost-driven pricing in snack nuts,
and increased competitive activity in liquid concentrates. Favorable volume/mix was driven primarily by growth in new on-demand coffee and
liquid concentrate products as well as higher shipments of ready-to-drink beverages and snack nuts, partially offset by lower shipments of
powdered beverages.

Segment operating income increased 21.2%, due primarily to lower commodity costs, lower overhead costs, lower manufacturing costs driven
by net productivity, and favorable volume/mix, partially offset by lower net pricing and higher marketing spending.

Refrigerated Meals

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 3,433  $ 3,334  3.0%  $ 3,334  $ 3,280  1.6 %
Organic Net Revenues(1) 3,433  3,334  3.0%  3,334  3,280  1.6 %
Segment operating income 409  364  12.4%  364  409  (11.0)%

(1) See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues increased 3.0%, as the business realized both higher net pricing (1.5 pp) and improved volume/mix (1.5 pp). Higher net pricing
reflected commodity cost-driven pricing in both cold cuts and hot dogs, partially offset by lower net pricing in bacon. Favorable volume/mix was
driven by higher shipments of bacon and lunch combinations, as well as the introduction of protein snacks, partially offset by unfavorable mix in
cold cuts and lower shipments of hot dogs.

Segment operating income increased 12.4%, primarily due to lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity and higher net pricing,
partially offset by higher commodity costs and increased marketing investments primarily in new protein snacks and in lunch combinations.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues increased 1.6%, driven primarily by higher net pricing (1.9 pp), primarily in bacon. Unfavorable volume/mix in cold cuts and meat
alternatives driven by lower shipments was partially offset by gains in lunch combinations.

Segment operating income decreased 11.0%, as commodity cost increases and higher marketing spending in lunch combinations and cold
cuts were partially offset by higher net pricing, lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity and lower overhead costs.

Meal Solutions

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 3,216  $ 3,423  (6.0)%  $ 3,423  $ 3,538  (3.3)%
Organic Net Revenues(1) 3,216  3,423  (6.0)%  3,423  3,538  (3.3)%
Segment operating income 1,073  1,130  (5.0)%  1,130  1,259  (10.2)%

(1) See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.
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Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues decreased 6.0%, due to unfavorable volume/mix (3.3 pp) and lower net pricing (2.7 pp). Unfavorable volume/mix was due
primarily to lower shipments of boxed dinners, refrigerated ready-to-eat desserts, and dry packaged desserts, resulting from changing
consumer preferences and increased competitive activity in these categories. Lower net pricing in spoonable and pourable dressings,
refrigerated ready-to-eat desserts, dessert toppings, and macaroni and cheese was driven by increased promotional activity.

Segment operating income decreased 5.0%, due primarily to lower net pricing and unfavorable volume/mix, partially offset by lower marketing
spending.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues decreased 3.3%, due to unfavorable volume/mix (4.1 pp), partially offset by higher net pricing (0.8 pp). Unfavorable volume/mix
was due primarily to lower shipments of refrigerated ready-to-eat desserts, pourable dressings, and spoonable dressings. Higher net pricing
was driven primarily by pricing actions in macaroni and cheese and boxed dinners and higher net pricing in refrigerated ready-to-eat desserts,
partially offset by increased competitive activity in spoonable and pourable dressings.

Segment operating income decreased 10.2%, due primarily to higher marketing spending, unfavorable volume/mix and higher commodity
costs. This decrease was partially offset by lower overhead costs, lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity, and higher net pricing.

International

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 2,304  $ 2,372  (2.9)%  $ 2,372  $ 2,318  2.3%
Organic Net Revenues(1) 2,354  2,284  3.1 %  2,349  2,219  5.9%
Segment operating income 451  463  (2.6)%  463  371  24.8%

(1) See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues decreased 2.9%, which included the unfavorable impact of foreign currency (5.9 pp). Organic Net Revenues increased 3.1%,
driven by favorable volume/mix (2.4 pp) and higher net pricing (0.7 pp). Favorable volume/mix reflected higher shipments in our Exports
business, higher shipments of natural cheese, and the launch of McCafé coffee, partially offset by lower shipments of processed cheese.
Higher net pricing in cheese and coffee was partially offset by lower net pricing in refreshment beverages and our Exports business.

Segment operating income decreased 2.6%, due to higher commodity costs and an unfavorable impact of foreign currency, partially offset by
lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity, lower marketing spending, and higher net pricing.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues increased 2.3%, which included the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency (2.8 pp) and lower sales to Mondelēz International
(0.8 pp). Organic Net Revenues increased 5.9%, driven by favorable volume/mix (6.9 pp), partially offset by lower net pricing (1.0 pp), primarily
in peanut butter. Favorable volume/mix was driven by higher shipments in our Exports business, higher shipments of peanut butter and natural
cheese, and favorable mix from coffee.

Segment operating income increased 24.8%, driven primarily by favorable volume/mix, lower overhead costs, and lower commodity costs,
partially offset by lower net pricing and higher investments in marketing driving volume/mix growth.
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Other Businesses

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  % Change  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  % Change

 (in millions)    (in millions)   

Net revenues $ 1,558  $ 1,500  3.9%  $ 1,500  $ 1,595  (6.0)%
Organic Net Revenues(1) 1,575  1,500  5.0%  1,508  1,595  (5.5)%
Segment operating income 188  172  9.3%  172  143  20.3 %

(1) See the Non-GAAP Financial Measures section at the end of this item.

Year Ended December 27, 2014 compared to Year Ended December 28, 2013

Net revenues increased 3.9%, despite the impact of unfavorable foreign currency (1.1 pp). Organic Net Revenues increased 5.0%, driven by
higher net pricing (5.2 pp), partially offset by unfavorable volume/mix (0.2 pp) as a result of planned product line exits.

Segment operating income increased 9.3%, as higher net pricing and lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity were partially offset
by increased commodity costs.

Year Ended December 28, 2013 compared to Year Ended December 29, 2012

Net revenues decreased 6.0%, which included the unfavorable impact of foreign currency (0.5 pp). Organic Net Revenues decreased 5.5%,
due to unfavorable volume/mix as a result of product line pruning (6.9 pp), partially offset by higher net pricing (1.4 pp).

Segment operating income increased 20.3%, driven primarily by higher net pricing, lower manufacturing costs driven by net productivity, and
lower marketing spending. This increase was partially offset by unfavorable volume/mix and higher commodity costs.

Critical Accounting Policies

Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the consolidated financial statements includes a summary of the significant accounting
policies we used to prepare our consolidated financial statements. The following is a review of the more significant assumptions and estimates,
as well as the accounting policies we used to prepare our consolidated financial statements.

Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include Kraft Foods Group, as well as our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions are
eliminated. Our period end date for financial reporting purposes is the last Saturday of the fiscal year, which aligns with the financial close dates
of our operating segments.

Prior to the Spin-Off on October 1, 2012, our financial statements were prepared on a stand-alone basis and were derived from the
consolidated financial statements and accounting records of Mondelēz International. Our financial statements included certain expenses of
Mondelēz International that were allocated to us for certain functions, including general corporate expenses related to finance, legal,
information technology, human resources, compliance, shared services, insurance, employee benefits and incentives, and stock-based
compensation. These expenses were allocated in our historical results of operations on the basis of direct usage when identifiable, with the
remainder allocated on the basis of revenue, operating income, or headcount. We consider the expense allocation methodology and results to
be reasonable for all periods presented. However, these allocations were not necessarily indicative of the actual expenses we would have
incurred as an independent public company or of the costs we will incur in the future, and may differ substantially from the allocations we
agreed to in the various separation agreements.
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Revenue Recognition:

We recognize revenues when title and risk of loss pass to our customers. We record revenues net of consumer incentives and trade
promotions and include all shipping and handling charges billed to customers. We also record provisions for estimated product returns and
customer allowances as reductions to revenues within the same period that the revenue is recognized. We base these estimates principally on
historical and current period experience, however, it is reasonably likely that actual experience will vary from the estimates we have made.

Marketing and Research and Development:

We promote our products with advertising and consumer promotions, consumer incentives, and trade promotions. Consumer incentives and
trade promotions include, but are not limited to, discounts, coupons, rebates, in-store display incentives, and volume-based incentives.
Consumer incentive and trade promotion activities are recorded as a reduction to revenues based on amounts estimated as being due to
customers and consumers at the end of a period. We base these estimates principally on historical utilization and redemption rates.

For interim reporting purposes, we charge advertising and consumer promotion expenses to operations as a percentage of volume, based on
estimated volume and related expense for the full year. We review and adjust these estimates each quarter based on actual experience and
other information. Advertising expense was $652 million in 2014, $747 million in 2013, and $640 million in 2012. We record marketing expense
in selling, general and administrative expense, except for consumer incentives and trade promotions, which are recorded in net revenues.

We expense costs as incurred for product research and development within selling, general and administrative expenses. Research and
development expense was $149 million in 2014, $142 million in 2013, and $143 million in 2012. The amounts disclosed in prior periods have
been revised to conform with the current year presentation.

Income Taxes:

We recognize income taxes based on amounts refundable or payable for the current year and record deferred tax assets or liabilities for any
difference between accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and tax reporting. We also
recognize deferred tax assets for temporary differences, operating loss carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards. Inherent in determining our
annual tax rate are judgments regarding business plans, planning opportunities, and expectations about future outcomes. Realization of certain
deferred tax assets, primarily net operating loss and other carryforwards, is dependent upon generating sufficient taxable income in the
appropriate jurisdiction prior to the expiration of the carryforward periods. See Note 12, Income Taxes, to the consolidated financial statements
for additional information.

We apply a more-likely-than-not threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertain tax positions. Accordingly, we recognize the amount
of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being ultimately realized upon settlement. Future changes in judgment related to
the expected ultimate resolution of uncertain tax positions will affect earnings in the quarter of such change.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter or when a triggering event occurs.
The first step of the goodwill impairment test compares the reporting unit’s estimated fair value with its carrying value. We estimate a reporting
unit’s fair value using planned growth rates, market-based discount rates, estimates of residual value, and estimates of market multiples. If the
carrying value of a reporting unit’s net assets exceeds its fair value, the second step would be applied to measure the difference between the
carrying value and implied fair value of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, the goodwill would be
considered impaired and reduced to its implied fair value.

We test indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment by comparing the fair value of each intangible asset with its carrying value. We
determine fair value of non-amortizing intangible assets using planned growth rates, market-based discount rates, and estimates of royalty
rates. If the carrying value exceeds fair value, the intangible asset would be considered impaired and would be reduced to fair value.

There were no impairments of goodwill or intangible assets in 2014, 2013, or 2012. During our annual 2014 indefinite-lived intangible asset
impairment test, we noted that a $958 million trademark and a $261 million trademark within Meal Solutions had excess fair values over their
carrying values of less than 20%. While these trademarks passed the 2014 impairment test, if our projections of future operating income were
to decline, or if
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valuation factors outside of our control, such as discount rates, change unfavorably, the estimated fair value of one or both of these trademarks
could be adversely affected, leading to a potential impairment in the future.

Estimating the fair value of individual reporting units or intangible assets requires us to make assumptions and estimates regarding our future
plans, as well as industry and economic conditions. These assumptions and estimates include projected revenues and income, interest rates,
cost of capital, royalty rates, and tax rates. Many of the factors used in assessing fair value are outside the control of management and it is
reasonably likely that assumptions and estimates will change in future periods. These changes could result in future impairments.

Postemployment Benefit Plans:

We provide a range of benefits to our employees and retirees. These include pension benefits, postretirement health care benefits, and other
postemployment benefits, consisting primarily of severance. We recognize net actuarial gains or losses and changes in the fair value of plan
assets immediately upon remeasurement, which is at least annually. The calculations of the amounts recorded require the use of various
actuarial assumptions, such as discount rates, assumed rates of return on plan assets, compensation increases, and turnover rates. We review
our actuarial assumptions on an annual basis and make modifications to the assumptions based on current rates and trends when appropriate.
We believe that the assumptions used in recording our pension, postretirement, and other postemployment benefit plan obligations are
reasonable based on our experience and advice from our actuaries. See Note 9, Postemployment Benefit Plans, to the consolidated financial
statements for a discussion of the assumptions used.

For our postretirement plans, our 2015 health care cost trend rate assumption will be 6.91%. We established this rate based upon our most
recent experience as well as our expectation for health care trend rates going forward. We anticipate that our health care cost trend rate
assumption will be 5.00% by 2023. Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care
plans. A one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects as of December 27, 2014:

  One-Percentage-Point

  Increase  Decrease

  (in millions)

Effect on annual service and interest cost  $ 25  $ (20)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation  433  (355)

Our 2015 discount rate assumption is 4.08% for our postretirement plans. Our 2015 discount rate assumption is 4.17% for our U.S. pension
plans and 3.87% for our non-U.S. pension plans. We model these discount rates using a portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments
with durations that match the expected future cash flows of the benefit obligations. Changes in our discount rates were primarily the result of
changes in bond yields year-over-year.

Our 2015 expected rate of return on plan assets is 5.75% for our U.S. pension plans and 5.00% for our non-U.S. pension plans. We determine
our expected rate of return on plan assets from the plan assets’ historical long-term investment performance, current and future asset
allocation, and estimates of future long-term returns by asset class. We attempt to maintain our target asset allocation by rebalancing between
asset classes as we make contributions and monthly benefit payments.

While we do not anticipate further changes in the 2015 assumptions for our U.S. and non-U.S. pension and postretirement health care plans,
as a sensitivity measure, a fifty-basis point change in our discount rate or a fifty-basis point change in the actual rate of return on plan assets
would have the following effects, increase / (decrease) in cost, as of December 27, 2014:

 U.S. Plans  Non-US. Plans

 Fifty-Basis-Point  Fifty-Basis-Point

 Increase  Decrease  Increase  Decrease
 (in millions)

Effect of change in discount rate on pension costs $ (499)  $ 562  $ (99)  $ 111
Effect of change in actual rate of return on plan assets on pension costs (29)  29  (7)  7
Effect of change in discount rate on postretirement health care costs (205)  229  (13)  15
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Prior to the Spin-Off, Mondelēz International provided defined benefit pension, postretirement health care, defined contribution, and
multiemployer pension and medical benefits to our eligible employees and retirees. Our consolidated statements of earnings for the year ended
December 29, 2012 included expense allocations for these benefits of $491 million through September 30, 2012, which were determined based
on a review of personnel by business unit and based on allocations of corporate or other shared functional personnel. We consider the
expense allocation methodology and results to be reasonable for all periods presented. These costs are reflected in cost of sales and selling,
general and administrative expenses. These costs were funded through intercompany transactions with Mondelēz International and were
reflected within the parent company investment equity balance.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, to the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of new accounting
pronouncements.

Contingencies

See Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies, to the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of contingencies.

Commodity Trends

We purchase and use large quantities of commodities, including dairy products, meat products, coffee beans, nuts, soybean and vegetable oils,
sugar and other sweeteners, corn products and wheat to manufacture our products. In addition, we purchase and use significant quantities of
resins and cardboard to package our products and natural gas to operate our facilities. We continuously monitor worldwide supply and cost
trends of these commodities.

During 2014, our aggregate commodity costs increased over the prior year, primarily as a result of record high dairy costs as well as increases
in packaging materials, nuts and meat product costs, partially offset by lower costs of coffee beans, soybean and vegetable oils, sugar and flour
and grain costs. Our commodity costs increased approximately $430 million in 2014 and approximately $120 million in 2013 compared to the
prior year. We expect commodity cost volatility to continue in 2015. We manage commodity cost volatility primarily through pricing and risk
management strategies. As a result of these risk management strategies, our commodity cost experience may not immediately correlate with
market price trends.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We believe that cash generated from our operating activities and our $3.0 billion revolving credit facility with our commercial paper program will
provide sufficient liquidity to meet our working capital needs, expected cost savings initiatives expenditures, planned capital expenditures and
contributions to our postemployment benefit plans, purchases under our discretionary share repurchase program, future contractual
obligations, and payment of our anticipated quarterly dividends. We will use our cash on hand and our commercial paper program for daily
funding requirements. Overall, we do not expect any negative effects on our funding sources that would have a material effect on our short-
term or long-term liquidity.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating activities provided net cash of $2.0 billion in 2014, $2.0 billion in 2013, and $3.0 billion in 2012. Net earnings in 2014 included
significant unfavorable non-cash market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans and the related deferred tax effects. Operating cash
flows in 2014 also reflected lower pension contributions. Net earnings in 2013 included significant favorable non-cash market-based impacts
and the related deferred tax effects. Operating cash flows in 2013 also reflected pension contributions of $611 million and working capital
improvements.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities:

Net cash used in investing activities was $535 million in 2014, $426 million in 2013, and $422 million in 2012, comprised mainly of capital
expenditures. Our cash used in investing activities in 2013 also included the receipt of proceeds of $101 million from the sale-leaseback of our
headquarters facilities. We expect 2015 capital expenditures to be approximately $550 million to $600 million, including capital expenditures
required for our ongoing cost savings initiatives. We expect to fund these expenditures with cash from operations.
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Net Cash Used in Financing Activities:

Net cash used in financing activities was $1.9 billion in 2014, $1.2 billion in 2013, and $1.4 billion in 2012. Net cash used in 2014 and 2013 was
comprised mainly of dividend payments. In addition, in 2014 we spent $740 million to repurchase shares of our common stock under our share
repurchase program, which was authorized by our Board of Directors in December 2013. The net cash used in 2012 primarily related to $7.2
billion of net transfers to Mondelēz International partially offset by the net proceeds we received from our $6.0 billion debt issuance.

Total Debt:

Our total debt was $10.0 billion at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013. The weighted average remaining term of our debt was 12.2
years at December 27, 2014. We have $1.4 billion of long-term debt maturing in the next 12 months that is classified as current. Our long-term
debt contains customary representations, covenants, and events of default. We were in compliance with all covenants at December 27, 2014.
We believe that cash on hand, cash flows from operations, and available short- and long-term debt financing will be adequate to meet our
contractual obligations.

On May 29, 2014, we entered into a new $3.0 billion five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility that expires on May 29, 2019 unless
extended. The credit facility enables us to borrow up to $3.0 billion, which may be increased by up to $1.0 billion in the aggregate with the
agreement of the lenders providing any increased commitments. All committed borrowings under the facility bear interest at a variable annual
rate based on the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate or a defined base rate, at our election, plus an applicable margin based on the ratings of our
long-term senior unsecured indebtedness. The credit facility requires us to maintain a minimum total shareholders’ equity (excluding
accumulated other comprehensive income or losses and any income or losses recognized in connection with “mark-to-market” accounting in
respect of pension and other retirement plans) of at least $2.4 billion and also contains customary representations, covenants, and events of
default. At December 27, 2014 and for the year ended December 27, 2014, no amounts were drawn on this credit facility. The credit facility
replaced our $3.0 billion five-year credit agreement dated as of May 18, 2012. We expect to use the credit facility for general corporate
purposes, including for working capital purposes and to support our commercial paper issuances.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements other than the guarantees and contractual obligations that are discussed below.

As discussed in Note 11, Commitments and Contingencies, to the consolidated financial statements, we have third-party guarantees primarily
covering long-term obligations related to leased properties. The carrying amount of our third-party guarantees was $22 million at December 27,
2014 and $24 million at December 28, 2013. The maximum potential payment under these guarantees was $42 million at December 27, 2014
and $53 million at December 28, 2013. Substantially all of these guarantees expire at various times through 2027.

In addition, we were contingently liable for guarantees related to our own performance totaling $87 million at December 27, 2014 and $86
million at December 28, 2013. These primarily include letters of credit related to dairy commodity purchases and other letters of credit.

Guarantees have not had, and we do not expect them to have, a material effect on our liquidity.
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Aggregate Contractual Obligations:

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at December 27, 2014.

  Payments Due

  Total  2015  2016-17  2018-19  
2020 and

Thereafter

  (in millions)

Long-term debt (1)  $ 10,046  $ 1,401  $ 1,002  $ 1,037  $ 6,606
Interest expense (2)  6,683  441  824  727  4,691
Capital leases (3)  38  7  12  7  12
Operating leases (4)  427  106  147  90  84
Purchase obligations: (5)           

Inventory and production costs  2,242  1,578  664  —  —
Other  735  313  287  98  37

  2,977  1,891  951  98  37
Pension contributions (6)  995  195  400  400  —
Other long-term liabilities (7)  2,045  198  425  401  1,021
Total  $ 23,211  $ 4,239  $ 3,761  $ 2,760  $ 12,451
 

(1) Amounts represent the expected cash payments of our long-term debt and do not include unamortized bond premiums or discounts.
(2) Amounts represent the expected cash payments of our interest expense on our long-term debt.
(3) Amounts represent the expected cash payments of our capital leases, including the expected cash payments of interest expense of approximately $8 million on our

capital leases.
(4) Operating leases represent the minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases.
(5) Purchase obligations for inventory and production costs (such as raw materials, indirect materials and supplies, packaging, co-manufacturing arrangements, storage,

and distribution) are commitments for projected needs to be utilized in the normal course of business. Other purchase obligations include commitments for marketing,
advertising, capital expenditures, information technology, and professional services. Arrangements are considered purchase obligations if a contract specifies all
significant terms, including fixed or minimum quantities to be purchased, a pricing structure, and approximate timing of the transaction. Any amounts reflected on the
consolidated balance sheet as accounts payable and accrued liabilities are excluded from the table above.

(6) We estimate that 2015 pension contributions would be approximately $195 million and approximately $200 million annually for the next four years thereafter. We
cannot reasonably estimate our contributions to our pension plans beyond 2019.

(7) Other long-term liabilities primarily consist of estimated future benefit payments for our postretirement health care plans through 2024 of approximately $2.0 billion. We
are unable to reliably estimate the timing of the payments beyond 2024; as such, they are excluded from the above table. In addition, the following long-term liabilities
included on the consolidated balance sheet are excluded from the table above: income taxes, insurance accruals, and other accruals. We are unable to reliably
estimate the timing of the payments for these items. As of December 27, 2014, our total net liability for income taxes, including uncertain tax positions and associated
accrued interest and penalties, was $279 million. We currently estimate paying up to approximately $187 million in the next 12 months related to our income tax
obligations as of December 27, 2014.

Equity and Dividends

On December 17, 2013, our Board of Directors authorized a $3.0 billion share repurchase program with no expiration date. Under the share
repurchase program, we are authorized to repurchase shares of our common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions.
The timing and amount of share repurchases are subject to management's evaluation of market conditions, applicable legal requirements, and
other factors. We are not obligated to repurchase any shares of our common stock and may suspend the program at our discretion. As of
December 27, 2014, we have repurchased approximately 13.1 million shares in the aggregate for approximately $746 million under this
program since its inception.

See Note 8, Stock Plans, to the consolidated financial statements for a discussion of our share-based equity programs.
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Dividends:

We paid dividends of $1,266 million in 2014 and $1,207 million in 2013. No dividends were paid in 2012. On December 16, 2014, our Board of
Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.55 per share of common stock, which was paid on January 16, 2015 to shareholders of record on
December 26, 2014. In connection with this dividend, we recorded $324 million of dividends payable as of December 27, 2014. The present
annualized dividend rate is $2.20 per share of common stock. The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors
and depends on various factors, including our net earnings, financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects, and other factors that our
Board of Directors deems relevant to its analysis and decision making.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

To supplement our financial statements presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP, we present Organic Net Revenues, which is considered a
non-GAAP financial measure. We define Organic Net Revenues as net revenues excluding the impact of transactions with Mondelēz
International, acquisitions, divestitures (including the termination of a full line of business due to the loss of a licensing or distribution
arrangement, and the complete exit of business out of a foreign country), currency and the 53rd week of shipments when it occurs. We calculate
the impact of currency on net revenues by holding exchange rates constant at the previous year's exchange rate. We believe that presenting
Organic Net Revenues is useful because it (1) provides both management and investors meaningful supplemental information regarding
financial performance by excluding certain items, (2) permits investors to view our performance using the same tools that management uses to
budget, make operating and strategic decisions, and evaluate our historical performance, and (3) otherwise provides supplemental information
that may be useful to investors in evaluating us.

We believe that the presentation of Organic Net Revenues, when considered together with the corresponding U.S. GAAP financial measure
and the reconciliation to that measure, provides investors with additional understanding of the factors and trends affecting our business than
could be obtained absent these disclosures. Non-GAAP financial measures should be viewed in addition to, and not as an alternative for, our
results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. In addition, the non-GAAP measures we use may differ from non-GAAP measures used by
other companies, and other companies may not define the non-GAAP measures we use in the same way. A reconciliation of Organic Net
Revenues to net revenues is set forth below.

 2014 Compared to 2013

 
Net

Revenues  
Impact of
Currency  

Sales to
Mondelēz

International  
Organic

Net Revenues
 (in millions)

Year Ended December 27, 2014        
Cheese $ 4,066  $ —  $ (45)  $ 4,021
Beverages & Snack Nuts 3,628  —  —  3,628
Refrigerated Meals 3,433  —  —  3,433
Meal Solutions 3,216  —  —  3,216
International 2,304  139  (89)  2,354
Other Businesses 1,558  17  —  1,575

Total $ 18,205  $ 156  $ (134)  $ 18,227

Year Ended December 28, 2013        
Cheese $ 3,925  $ —  $ (51)  $ 3,874
Beverages & Snack Nuts 3,664  —  (8)  3,656
Refrigerated Meals 3,334  —  —  3,334
Meal Solutions 3,423  —  —  3,423
International 2,372  —  (88)  2,284
Other Businesses 1,500  —  —  1,500

Total $ 18,218  $ —  $ (147)  $ 18,071
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 2013 Compared to 2012

 
Net

Revenues  
Impact of
Currency  

Sales to
Mondelēz

International  
Organic

Net Revenues
 (in millions)

Year Ended December 28, 2013        
Cheese $ 3,925  $ —  $ (51)  $ 3,874
Beverages & Snack Nuts 3,664  —  (8)  3,656
Refrigerated Meals 3,334  —  —  3,334
Meal Solutions 3,423  —  —  3,423
International 2,372  65  (88)  2,349
Other Businesses 1,500  8  —  1,508

Total $ 18,218  $ 73  $ (147)  $ 18,144

Year Ended December 29, 2012        
Cheese $ 3,829  $ —  $ (12)  $ 3,817
Beverages & Snack Nuts 3,711  —  (3)  3,708
Refrigerated Meals 3,280  —  —  3,280
Meal Solutions 3,538  —  —  3,538
International 2,318  —  (99)  2,219
Other Businesses 1,595  —  —  1,595

Total $ 18,271  $ —  $ (114)  $ 18,157
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Kraft Foods Group, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive earnings,
equity, and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Kraft Foods Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December
27, 2014 and December 28, 2013, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 27, 2014 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 27, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's
management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the Report of Management
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements,
on the financial statement schedule, and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our
audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 19, 2015, except for the effects of the changes in the composition of reportable segments described in Notes 4, 5 and 15 as to which
the date is August 10, 2015.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data)

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

Net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  $ 18,271
Cost of sales 13,360  11,395  12,499

Gross profit 4,845  6,823  5,772
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,956  2,124  2,961
Asset impairment and exit costs (1)  108  141

Operating income 1,890  4,591  2,670
Interest and other expense, net (484)  (501)  (258)
Royalty income from Mondelēz International —  —  41

Earnings before income taxes 1,406  4,090  2,453
Provision for income taxes 363  1,375  811

Net earnings $ 1,043  $ 2,715  $ 1,642

Per share data:      
Basic earnings per share $ 1.75  $ 4.55  $ 2.77
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.74  $ 4.51  $ 2.75
Dividends declared $ 2.15  $ 2.05  $ 0.50

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Earnings

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

Net earnings $ 1,043  $ 2,715  $ 1,642
Other comprehensive (losses) / earnings:      

Currency translation adjustment (91)  (68)  36
Postemployment benefits:      

Prior service credits arising during the period 58  31  —
Amortization of prior service credits and other amounts reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive losses (20)  (22)  (6)
Tax (expense) / benefit (14)  (3)  2

Derivatives accounted for as hedges:      
Net derivative gains / (losses) 90  33  (322)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive losses (84)  4  112
Tax (expense) / benefit (2)  (14)  80

Total other comprehensive losses (63)  (39)  (98)

Comprehensive earnings $ 980  $ 2,676  $ 1,544

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
 

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013

ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,293  $ 1,686
Receivables (net of allowances of $21 in 2014 and $26 in 2013) 1,080  1,048
Inventories 1,775  1,616
Deferred income taxes 384  360
Other current assets 259  198

Total current assets 4,791  4,908
Property, plant and equipment, net 4,192  4,115
Goodwill 11,404  11,505
Intangible assets, net 2,234  2,229
Other assets 326  391

TOTAL ASSETS $ 22,947  $ 23,148
LIABILITIES    

Current portion of long-term debt $ 1,405  $ 4
Accounts payable 1,537  1,548
Accrued marketing 511  685
Accrued employment costs 163  184
Dividends payable 324  313
Accrued postretirement health care costs 192  197
Other current liabilities 641  479

Total current liabilities 4,773  3,410
Long-term debt 8,627  9,976
Deferred income taxes 340  662
Accrued pension costs 1,105  405
Accrued postretirement health care costs 3,399  3,080
Other liabilities 338  428

TOTAL LIABILITIES 18,582  17,961
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 11)  
EQUITY    

Common stock, no par value (5,000,000,000 shares authorized; 601,402,816 shares issued at
December 27, 2014 and 596,843,449 at December 28, 2013) —  —

Additional paid-in capital 4,678  4,434
Retained earnings 1,045  1,281
Accumulated other comprehensive losses (562)  (499)
Treasury stock, at cost (796)  (29)

TOTAL EQUITY 4,365  5,187
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 22,947  $ 23,148

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Equity

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except per share data)
 

 
Common

Stock  

Additional
Paid-in
Capital  

Parent
Company

Investment  

Retained
Earnings
/ (Deficit)  

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Losses  

Treasury
Stock  

Total
Equity

Balance at December 31, 2011 $ —  $ —  $ 16,713  $ —  $ (125)  $ —  $ 16,588
Comprehensive earnings / (losses):              

Net earnings —  —  1,552  90  —  —  1,642
Other comprehensive losses, net of

income taxes —  —  —  —  (98)  —  (98)
Consummation of spin-off transaction on

October 1, 2012 —  4,208  (7,670)  —  (233)  —  (3,695)
Net transfers to / from Mondelēz

International —  —  (10,595)  —  (4)  —  (10,599)
Exercise of stock options, issuance of

other stock awards, and other —  32  —  —  —  (2)  30
Dividends declared ($0.50 per share) —  —  —  (296)  —  —  (296)
Balance at December 29, 2012 $ —  $ 4,240  $ —  $ (206)  $ (460)  $ (2)  $ 3,572
Comprehensive earnings / (losses):              

Net earnings —  —  —  2,715  —  —  2,715
Other comprehensive losses, net of

income taxes —  —  —  —  (39)  —  (39)
Exercise of stock options, issuance of

other stock awards, and other —  194  —  —  —  (27)  167
Dividends declared ($2.05 per share) —  —  —  (1,228)  —  —  (1,228)
Balance at December 28, 2013 $ —  $ 4,434  $ —  $ 1,281  $ (499)  $ (29)  $ 5,187
Comprehensive earnings / (losses):              

Net earnings —  —  —  1,043  —  —  1,043
Other comprehensive losses, net of

income taxes —  —  —  —  (63)  —  (63)
Exercise of stock options, issuance of

other stock awards, and other —  244  —  —  —  (21)  223
Repurchase of common stock under

share repurchase program —  —  —  —  —  (746)  (746)
Dividends declared ($2.15 per share) —  —  —  (1,279)  —  —  (1,279)
Balance at December 27, 2014 $ —  $ 4,678  $ —  $ 1,045  $ (562)  $ (796)  $ 4,365

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
 

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

CASH PROVIDED BY / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES      
Net earnings $ 1,043  $ 2,715  $ 1,642
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to operating cash flows:      

Depreciation and amortization 385  393  428
Stock-based compensation expense 95  65  54
Deferred income tax provision (361)  708  470
Asset impairments —  28  28
Market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans 1,341  (1,561)  223
Other non-cash expense, net 67  138  159
Change in assets and liabilities:    

Receivables, net (22)  35  220
Inventories (53)  235  21
Accounts payable 45  45  (241)
Other current assets (41)  (9)  (61)
Other current liabilities (164)  (217)  205

Change in pension and postretirement assets and liabilities, net (315)  (532)  (113)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,020  2,043  3,035

CASH (USED IN) / PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES      
Capital expenditures (535)  (557)  (440)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2  131  18
Other investing activities (2)  —  —

Net cash used in investing activities (535)  (426)  (422)
CASH (USED IN) / PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Dividends paid (1,266)  (1,207)  —
Repurchase of common stock under share repurchase program (740)  —  —
Proceeds from stock option exercises 115  96  14
Long-term debt proceeds —  —  5,963
Net transfers to Mondelēz International —  —  (7,210)
Other financing activities 25  (60)  (125)

Net cash used in financing activities (1,866)  (1,171)  (1,358)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (12)  (15)  —
Cash and cash equivalents:      

(Decrease) / increase (393)  431  1,255
Balance at beginning of period 1,686  1,255  —
Balance at end of period $ 1,293  $ 1,686  $ 1,255

      

Cash paid:      
Interest $ 487  $ 481  $ 152
Income taxes $ 745  $ 799  $ 236

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business:
Kraft Foods Group, Inc. (“Kraft Foods Group,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) manufactures and markets food and beverage products, including cheese,
meats, refreshment beverages, coffee, packaged dinners, refrigerated meals, snack nuts, dressings, and other grocery products, primarily in
the United States and Canada. Our product categories span breakfast, lunch, and dinner meal occasions.

On October 1, 2012, Mondelēz International, Inc. (“Mondelēz International,” formerly known as Kraft Foods Inc.) created us as an independent
public company through a spin-off of its North American grocery business to Mondelēz International’s shareholders (the “Spin-Off”). Mondelēz
International distributed 592 million shares of Kraft Foods Group common stock to Mondelēz International’s shareholders. Holders of Mondelēz
International common stock received one share of Kraft Foods Group common stock for every three shares of Mondelēz International common
stock held on September 19, 2012.

Principles of Consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements include Kraft Foods Group, as well as our wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions are
eliminated. Our period end date for financial reporting purposes is the last Saturday of the fiscal year, which aligns with the financial close dates
of our operating segments.

Prior to the Spin-Off on October 1, 2012, our financial statements were prepared on a stand-alone basis and were derived from the
consolidated financial statements and accounting records of Mondelēz International. Our financial statements included certain expenses of
Mondelēz International that were allocated to us for certain functions, including general corporate expenses related to finance, legal,
information technology, human resources, compliance, shared services, insurance, employee benefits and incentives, and stock-based
compensation. These expenses were allocated in our historical results of operations on the basis of direct usage when identifiable, with the
remainder allocated on the basis of revenue, operating income, or headcount. We consider the expense allocation methodology and results to
be reasonable for all periods presented. However, these allocations were not necessarily indicative of the actual expenses we would have
incurred as an independent public company or of the costs we will incur in the future, and may differ substantially from the allocations we
agreed to in the various separation agreements.

Use of Estimates:
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which requires us to make accounting policy elections,
estimates, and assumptions that affect a number of amounts in our consolidated financial statements. We base our estimates on historical
experience and other assumptions that we believe are reasonable. If actual amounts differ from estimates, we include the revisions in our
consolidated results of operations in the period the actual amounts become known. Historically, the aggregate differences, if any, between our
estimates and actual amounts in any year have not had a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash equivalents include demand deposits with banks and all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Inventories:
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. We value all our inventories using the average cost method.

Long-Lived Assets:
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost and depreciated by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Machinery and equipment are depreciated over periods ranging from 3 to 20 years and buildings and improvements over periods up to
40 years. Capitalized software costs are included in property, plant and equipment and amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the software, which do not exceed seven years.

We review long-lived assets for impairment when conditions exist that indicate the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverable.
Such conditions include significant adverse changes in the business climate, current-period operating or cash flow losses, significant declines
in forecasted operations, or a current expectation that an
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asset group will be disposed of before the end of its useful life. We perform undiscounted operating cash flow analyses to determine if an
impairment exists. When testing for impairment of assets held for use, we group assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which cash flows
are separately identifiable. If an impairment is determined to exist, the loss is calculated based on estimated fair value. Impairment losses on
assets to be disposed of, if any, are based on the estimated proceeds to be received, less costs of disposal.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:
We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter or when a triggering event occurs.
The first step of the goodwill impairment test compares the reporting unit’s estimated fair value with its carrying value. We estimate a reporting
unit’s fair value using planned growth rates, market-based discount rates, estimates of residual value, and estimates of market multiples. If the
carrying value of a reporting unit’s net assets exceeds its fair value, the second step would be applied to measure the difference between the
carrying value and implied fair value of goodwill. If the carrying value of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, the goodwill would be
considered impaired and would be reduced to its implied fair value.

We test indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment by comparing the fair value of each intangible asset with its carrying value. Fair value of
indefinite-lived intangible assets is determined using planned growth rates, market-based discount rates, and estimates of royalty rates. If the
carrying value exceeds fair value, the intangible asset would be considered impaired and would be reduced to fair value.

Estimating the fair value of individual reporting units or intangible assets requires us to make assumptions and estimates regarding our future
plans, as well as industry and economic conditions. These assumptions and estimates include projected revenues and income, interest rates,
cost of capital, royalty rate, and tax rates.

Insurance and Self-Insurance:
We use a combination of insurance and self-insurance for a number of risks, including workers' compensation, general liability, automobile
liability, product liability, and our obligation for employee health care benefits. We estimate the liabilities associated with these risks by
considering historical claims experience and other actuarial assumptions.

Revenue Recognition:
We recognize revenues when title and risk of loss pass to our customers. We record revenues net of consumer incentives and trade
promotions and include all shipping and handling charges billed to customers. We also record provisions for estimated product returns and
customer allowances as reductions to revenues within the same period that the revenue is recognized. We base these estimates principally on
historical and current period experience, however, it is reasonably likely that actual experiences will vary from the estimates we make.

Marketing and Research and Development:
We promote our products with advertising and consumer promotions, consumer incentives, and trade promotions. Consumer incentives and
trade promotions include, but are not limited to, discounts, coupons, rebates, in-store display incentives, and volume-based incentives.
Consumer incentive and trade promotion activities are recorded as a reduction to revenues based on amounts estimated as being due to
customers and consumers at the end of a period. We base these estimates principally on historical utilization and redemption rates.

For interim reporting purposes, we charge advertising and consumer promotion expenses to operations as a percentage of volume, based on
estimated volume and related expense for the full year. We review and adjust these estimates each quarter based on actual experience and
other information. Advertising expense was $652 million in 2014, $747 million in 2013, and $640 million in 2012. We record marketing expense
in selling, general and administrative expense, except for consumer incentives and trade promotions, which are recorded in net revenues.

We expense costs as incurred for product research and development within selling, general and administrative expenses. Research and
development expense was $149 million in 2014, $142 million in 2013, and $143 million in 2012. The amounts disclosed in prior periods have
been revised to exclude market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans and certain other costs that are not directly associated with our
research and development activities. The impacts of these revisions to the disclosure were not material to any prior period.

28



Environmental Costs:
We are subject to various laws and regulations in the United States and Canada relating to the protection of the environment. We accrue for
environmental remediation obligations on an undiscounted basis when amounts are probable and can be reasonably estimated. The accruals
are adjusted based on new information or as circumstances change. We record recoveries of environmental remediation costs from third
parties as assets when we believe these amounts are receivable. As of December 27, 2014, we were involved in 56 active proceedings in the
United States under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act (and other similar state actions and
legislation) related to our current operations and certain closed, inactive or divested operations for which we retain liability.

As of December 27, 2014, we had accrued an amount we deemed appropriate for environmental remediation. Based on information currently
available, we believe that the ultimate resolution of existing environmental remediation actions and our compliance in general with
environmental laws and regulations will not have a material effect on our financial condition or results from operations. However, we cannot
quantify with certainty the potential impact of future compliance efforts and environmental remediation actions.

Postemployment Benefit Plans:
We provide a range of benefits to our eligible employees and retirees. These include defined benefit pension, postretirement health care,
defined contribution, and multiemployer pension and medical benefits. Our pension, postretirement, and other postemployment (collectively,
“postemployment”) benefit plans cover most salaried and certain hourly employees. The cost of these plans is charged to expense over the
working life of the covered employees.

We account for defined benefit costs using a mark-to-market policy. Under this accounting method, we recognize net actuarial gains or losses
and changes in the fair value of plan assets in cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses immediately upon
remeasurement, which is at least annually.

Financial Instruments:
As we operate primarily in North America but source our commodities on global markets and periodically enter into financing or other
arrangements abroad, we use a variety of risk management strategies and financial instruments to manage commodity price, foreign currency
exchange rate, and interest rate risks. Our risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to reduce
the potentially adverse effects that the volatility of these markets may have on our operating results. One way we do this is through actively
hedging our risks through the use of derivative instruments. As a matter of policy, we do not use highly leveraged derivative instruments, nor do
we use financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are recorded on our consolidated balance sheets at fair value, which fluctuates based on changing market conditions.

Certain derivatives are designated as cash flow hedges and qualify for hedge accounting treatment, while others do not qualify and are marked
to market through earnings. For cash flow hedges, changes in fair value are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses)
within equity until the underlying hedged items are recognized in net earnings. Accordingly, we record deferred cash flow hedge gains or losses
in cost of sales when the related inventory is sold and in interest and other expense, net, when the related debt interest expense is recorded.
Cash flows from derivative instruments are also classified in the same manner as the underlying hedged items in the consolidated statement of
cash flows. For additional information on derivative activity within our operating results, see Note 10, Financial Instruments.

To qualify for hedge accounting, a specified level of hedging effectiveness between the hedging instrument and the item being hedged must be
achieved at inception and maintained throughout the hedged period. Any hedging ineffectiveness is recognized in net earnings when the
change in the value of the hedge does not offset the change in the value of the underlying hedged item. We formally document our risk
management objectives, strategies for undertaking the various hedge transactions, the nature of and relationships between the hedging
instruments and hedged items, and method for assessing hedge effectiveness. Additionally, for qualified hedges of forecasted transactions, we
specifically identify the significant characteristics and expected terms of the forecasted transactions. If it becomes probable that a forecasted
transaction will not occur, the hedge will no longer be effective and all of the derivative gains or losses would be recognized in earnings in the
current period.

Unrealized gains and losses on our derivatives not designated as hedging instruments as well as the ineffective portion of unrealized gains and
losses on our derivatives designated as hedging instruments, are recorded in
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Corporate until realized. Once realized, the gains and losses are recorded within the applicable segment operating results.

When we use financial instruments, we are exposed to credit risk that a counterparty might fail to fulfill its performance obligations under the
terms of our agreement. We minimize our credit risk by entering into transactions with counterparties with investment grade credit ratings,
limiting the amount of exposure we have with each counterparty, and monitoring the financial condition of our counterparties. We also maintain
a policy of requiring that all significant, non-exchange traded derivative contracts with a duration of greater than one year be governed by an
International Swaps and Derivatives Association master agreement. We are also exposed to market risk as the value of our financial
instruments might be adversely affected by a change in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices, or interest rates. We manage
market risk by incorporating monitoring parameters within our risk management strategy that limit the types of derivative instruments and
derivative strategies we use and the degree of market risk that we hedge with derivative instruments.

Commodity cash flow hedges – We are exposed to price risk related to forecasted purchases of certain commodities that we primarily use as
raw materials. We enter into commodity forward contracts primarily for coffee beans, meat products, sugar, wheat, and dairy products.
Commodity forward contracts generally are not subject to the accounting requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities under
the normal purchases exception. We also use commodity futures and options to hedge the price of certain commodity costs, including dairy
products, coffee beans, meat products, wheat, corn products, soybean oils, sugar, and natural gas. Some of these derivative instruments are
highly effective and qualify for hedge accounting treatment. We also sell commodity futures to unprice future purchase commitments, and we
occasionally use related futures to cross-hedge a commodity exposure.

Foreign currency cash flow hedges – We use various financial instruments to mitigate our exposure to changes in exchange rates from third-
party and intercompany actual and forecasted transactions. These instruments may include forward foreign exchange contracts and foreign
currency options. We primarily use these instruments to hedge our exposure to the Canadian dollar. Substantially all of these derivative
instruments are highly effective and qualify for hedge accounting treatment.

Interest rate cash flow hedges – We use derivative instruments, including interest rate swaps, as part of our interest rate risk management
strategy. We primarily use interest rate swaps to hedge the variability of interest payment cash flows on a portion of our future debt obligations.
Substantially all of these derivative instruments are highly effective and qualify for hedge accounting treatment.

Income Taxes:
We recognize income taxes based on amounts refundable or payable for the current year and record deferred tax assets or liabilities for any
difference between U.S. GAAP accounting and tax reporting. We also recognize deferred tax assets for temporary differences, operating loss
carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards. Inherent in determining our annual tax rate are judgments regarding business plans, planning
opportunities, and expectations about future outcomes. Realization of certain deferred tax assets, primarily net operating loss and other
carryforwards, is dependent upon generating sufficient taxable income in the appropriate jurisdiction prior to the expiration of the carryforward
periods. See Note 12, Income Taxes, for additional information.

We apply a more-likely-than-not threshold to the recognition and derecognition of uncertain tax positions. Accordingly, we recognize the amount
of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being ultimately realized upon settlement. Future changes in judgment related to
the expected ultimate resolution of uncertain tax positions will affect earnings in the quarter of such change.

New Accounting Pronouncements:
In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued an accounting standard update ("ASU") that modified the criteria
for reporting the disposal of a component of an entity as discontinued operations. In addition, the ASU requires additional disclosures about
discontinued operations. The ASU will be effective for all disposals of components of an entity that occur during our fiscal year 2015 and
thereafter. We do not expect the adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on our financial statements and related disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued an ASU that supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance. Under the new ASU, an entity will apply a
principles-based five step model to recognize revenue upon the transfer of promised goods or services to customers and in an amount that
reflects the consideration for which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The ASU will be effective
beginning in the first quarter of our fiscal year
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2017. Early adoption is not permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact that this ASU will have on our financial statements and related
disclosures.

Note 2.  Inventories

Inventories at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Raw materials $ 481  $ 453
Work in process 296  294
Finished product 998  869
Inventories $ 1,775  $ 1,616

Note 3.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Land $ 79  $ 72
Buildings and improvements 1,881  1,806
Machinery and equipment 5,619  5,584
Construction in progress 464  360

 8,043  7,822
Accumulated depreciation (3,851)  (3,707)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 4,192  $ 4,115

In 2013, we sold and leased back two of our headquarters facilities for a loss of approximately $36 million. We received net proceeds of $101
million in connection with the sales.

Note 4.  Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill by reportable segment at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 was:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Cheese $ 3,000  $ 3,000
Beverages & Snack Nuts 2,460  2,460
Refrigerated Meals 985  985
Meal Solutions 3,046  3,046
International 1,061  1,151
Other Businesses 852  863
Goodwill $ 11,404  $ 11,505

The change in Goodwill during 2014 of $101 million reflects the impact of foreign currency.

Intangible assets consist primarily of indefinite-lived trademarks. Amortizing intangible assets were insignificant in both periods presented.

We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment at least annually in the fourth quarter or when a triggering event occurs.
There were no impairments of goodwill or intangible assets in 2014, 2013, or 2012. During our annual 2014 indefinite-lived intangible asset
impairment test, we noted that a $958 million trademark and a $261 million trademark within Meal Solutions had excess fair values over their
carrying values of less than 20%. While these trademarks passed the 2014 impairment test, if our projections of future operating income were
to
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decline, or if valuation factors outside of our control, such as discount rates, change unfavorably, the estimated fair value of one or both of
these trademarks could be adversely affected, leading to a potential impairment in the future.

Note 5.  Cost Savings Initiatives

Cost savings initiatives are related to reorganization activities including severance, asset disposals, and other activities. Included within cost
savings initiatives are activities related to the previously disclosed multi-year restructuring program (the "Restructuring Program"), which we
completed as of December 27, 2014.

Total Cost Savings Initiatives Expenses:
We recorded expenses related to our cost savings initiatives in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Restructuring costs - Asset impairment and exit costs $ (1)  $ 108  $ 141
Implementation costs - Cost of sales 12  77  97
Implementation costs - Selling, general and administrative expenses —  65  34
Spin-Off transition costs - Selling, general and administrative expenses 4  32  31
Other cost savings initiatives expenses - Cost of sales 49  —  —
Other cost savings initiatives expenses - Selling, general and administrative expenses 43  8  —
 $ 107  $ 290  $ 303

Cost savings initiatives expenses are not included in the results of our reportable segments for management or segment reporting. However,
the following table summarizes the total cost savings initiatives expenses related to our reportable segments:

 For the Year Ended December 27, 2014

 Restructuring Program     

 
Restructuring

Costs  
Implementation

Costs  

Spin-Off
Transition

Costs  

Other Cost
Savings Initiatives

Expenses  Total
 (in millions)

Cheese $ 1  $ 6  $ —  $ 12  $ 19
Beverages & Snack Nuts (2)  1  —  6  5
Refrigerated Meals —  2  —  29  31
Meal Solutions —  2  —  39  41
International —  1  —  2  3
Other Businesses —  —  —  3  3
Corporate expenses —  —  4  1  5
Total $ (1)  $ 12  $ 4  $ 92  $ 107
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 For the Year Ended December 28, 2013

 Restructuring Program     

 
Restructuring

Costs  
Implementation

Costs  

Spin-Off
Transition

Costs  

Other Cost
Savings Initiatives

Expenses  Total
 (in millions)

Cheese $ 26  $ 62  $ —  $ —  $ 88
Beverages & Snack Nuts 24  27  —  —  51
Refrigerated Meals 18  17  —  —  35
Meal Solutions 21  19  —  —  40
International 10  7  —  —  17
Other Businesses 9  10  —  —  19
Corporate expenses —  —  32  8  40
Total $ 108  $ 142  $ 32  $ 8  $ 290

 For the Year Ended December 29, 2012

 Restructuring Program     

 
Restructuring

Costs  
Implementation

Costs  

Spin-Off
Transition

Costs  

Other Cost
Savings Initiatives

Expenses  Total
 (in millions)

Cheese $ 26  $ 72  $ —  $ —  $ 98
Beverages & Snack Nuts 52  22  —  —  74
Refrigerated Meals 19  11  —  —  30
Meal Solutions 24  14  —  —  38
International 9  5  —  —  14
Other Businesses 11  7  —  —  18
Corporate expenses —  —  31  —  31
Total $ 141  $ 131  $ 31  $ —  $ 303

Restructuring Program:
Our Restructuring Program included the following:

• Restructuring costs that qualified for special accounting treatment as exit or disposal activities.

• Implementation costs that were directly attributable to the Restructuring Program, but did not qualify for special accounting treatment
as exit or disposal activities. These costs primarily related to reorganization costs associated with our sales function, our information
systems infrastructure, and accelerated depreciation on assets.

• Transition costs related to the Spin-Off. The Spin-Off transition costs consisted mostly of professional service fees within our finance,
legal, and information systems functions.

At December 27, 2014, we incurred Restructuring Program costs of $600 million since the inception of the Restructuring Program. We spent
$291 million in cash. We spent cash related to our Restructuring Program of $30 million in 2014, $150 million in 2013, and $111 million in 2012.
We did not incur any non-cash costs in 2014. We incurred non-cash costs of $157 million in 2013 and $151 million in 2012.
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Restructuring Costs Liability:
At December 27, 2014, the restructuring costs liability balance within other current liabilities was as follows:

 

Severance
and Related

Costs
 (in millions)

Liability balance, December 28, 2013 $ 19
Restructuring costs (1)
Cash spent on restructuring costs (12)
Foreign exchange (1)

Liability balance, December 27, 2014 $ 5

Note 6. Debt

Borrowing Arrangements:
On May 29, 2014, we entered into a new $3.0 billion five-year senior unsecured revolving credit facility that expires on May 29, 2019 unless
extended. The credit facility enables us to borrow up to $3.0 billion, which may be increased by up to $1.0 billion in the aggregate with the
agreement of the lenders providing any increased commitments. All committed borrowings under the facility bear interest at a variable annual
rate based on the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate or a defined base rate, at our election, plus an applicable margin based on the ratings of our
long-term senior unsecured indebtedness. The credit facility requires us to maintain a minimum total shareholders’ equity (excluding
accumulated other comprehensive income or losses and any income or losses recognized in connection with “mark-to-market” accounting in
respect of pension and other retirement plans) of at least $2.4 billion and also contains customary representations, covenants, and events of
default. At December 27, 2014 and for the year ended December 27, 2014, no amounts were drawn on this credit facility. The credit facility
replaced our $3.0 billion five-year credit agreement dated as of May 18, 2012.

Long-Term Debt:
Our long-term debt consists of the following at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013:

  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  Maturity Date  Fixed Interest Rate  Payment Period

  (in millions)       
Senior unsecured notes  $ 1,000  $ 1,000  June 4, 2015  1.625%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  400  400  June 15, 2015  7.550%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  1,000  1,000  June 5, 2017  2.250%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  1,035  1,035  August 23, 2018  6.125%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  900  900  February 10, 2020  5.375%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  2,000  2,000  June 6, 2022  3.500%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  878  878  January 26, 2039  6.875%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  787  787  February 9, 2040  6.500%  Semiannually
Senior unsecured notes  2,000  2,000  June 4, 2042  5.000%  Semiannually
Capital lease obligations  30  31       
Other  2  (51)       
Total debt  10,032  9,980       
Current portion of long-term debt  (1,405)  (4)       

Total long-term debt  $ 8,627  $ 9,976       
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At December 27, 2014, aggregate maturities of our long-term debt were (in millions):

2015 $ 1,406
2016 6
2017 1,006
2018 1,039
2019 3
Thereafter 6,616

Our long-term debt contains customary representations, covenants, and events of default. We were in compliance with all covenants at
December 27, 2014.

Fair Value of Our Debt:
At December 27, 2014, the aggregate fair value of our total debt was $11.0 billion as compared with the carrying value of $10.0 billion. We
determined the fair value of our long-term debt using Level 1 quoted prices in active markets for the publicly traded debt obligations.

Interest and Other Expense, Net:
Interest and other expense, net was $484 million in 2014, $501 million in 2013, and $258 million in 2012. Other expense within interest and
other expense, net was insignificant for all periods presented.

Note 7.  Capital Stock

Our Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of up to 5.0 billion shares of common stock and 500 million shares
of preferred stock.

Shares of common stock issued, in treasury and outstanding were:

 
Shares
Issued  

Treasury
Shares  

Shares
Outstanding

Consummation of Spin-Off on October 1, 2012 592,257,298  —  592,257,298
Exercise of stock options, issuance of other stock awards and other 526,398  (19,988)  506,410

Balance at December 29, 2012 592,783,696  (19,988)  592,763,708
Exercise of stock options, issuance of other stock awards and other 4,059,753  (589,011)  3,470,742

Balance at December 28, 2013 596,843,449  (608,999)  596,234,450
Shares of common stock repurchased —  (13,073,863)  (13,073,863)
Exercise of stock options, issuance of other stock awards and other 4,559,367  (388,010)  4,171,357

Balance at December 27, 2014 601,402,816  (14,070,872)  587,331,944

At December 27, 2014, we had approximately 0.3 million shares of restricted stock outstanding that were issued to current and former
employees. There were no preferred shares issued or outstanding at December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013 or December 29, 2012.

On December 17, 2013, our Board of Directors authorized a $3.0 billion share repurchase program with no expiration date. Under the share
repurchase program, we are authorized to repurchase shares of our common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions.
The timing and amount of share repurchases are subject to management's evaluation of market conditions, applicable legal requirements, and
other factors. We are not obligated to repurchase any shares of our common stock and may suspend the program at our discretion. In 2014,
we repurchased approximately 13.1 million shares in the aggregate for approximately $746 million under this program. Approximately $6 million
of the $746 million was accrued at December 27, 2014 and settled in the subsequent month. No shares were repurchased under this program
in 2013.
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Note 8.  Stock Plans

Under the Kraft Foods Group, Inc. 2012 Performance Incentive Plan (the "2012 Plan"), we may grant eligible employees awards of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) as well as performance based long-term incentive
awards (“Performance Shares”). In addition, we may grant shares of our common stock to members of the Board of Directors who are not our
full-time employees under the 2012 Plan. We are authorized to issue a maximum of 72.0 million shares of our common stock under the 2012
Plan. Stock options and stock appreciation rights granted under the plan reduce the authorized shares available for issue at a ratio of one
share per award granted. All other awards granted, such as restricted stock, RSUs, and Performance Shares, reduce the authorized shares
available for issue at a ratio of three shares per award granted. At December 27, 2014, there were 32,293,456 shares available to be granted
under the 2012 Plan. All stock awards are issued to employees from authorized shares of common stock.

Stock Options:
Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying stock on the grant date, generally become
exercisable in three annual installments beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date, and have a maximum term of ten years.

We account for our employee stock options under the fair value method of accounting using a modified Black-Scholes methodology to measure
stock option expense at the grant date. The grant date fair value is amortized to expense over the vesting period. We recorded compensation
expense related to stock options of $18 million in 2014, $18 million in 2013, and $5 million in 2012 subsequent to the Spin-Off. The deferred tax
benefit recorded related to this compensation expense was $6 million in 2014, $6 million in 2013, and $2 million in 2012. The unamortized
compensation expense related to our outstanding stock options was $15 million at December 27, 2014 and is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of two years. Our weighted average Black-Scholes fair value assumptions were as follows:

  
Risk-Free

Interest Rate  Expected Life  
Expected
Volatility  

Expected
Dividend Yield  

Grant Date
Fair Value

Kraft Foods Group grants           
2014  1.84%  6 years  19.33%  3.57%  $ 6.16
2013  1.04%  6 years  19.40%  4.26%  $ 4.41

Mondelēz International grants           
2012  1.16%  6 years  20.13%  3.08%  $ 4.78

The risk-free interest rate represents the constant maturity U.S. government treasuries rate with a remaining term equal to the expected life of
the options. The expected life is the period over which our employees are expected to hold their options. Due to the lack of historical data, we
use the Safe Harbor method which uses the weighted average vesting period and the contractual term of the options to calculate the expected
life. Volatility reflects a blended approach which uses historical movements in our stock price and in our peer group for a period commensurate
with the expected life of the options. Dividend yield is estimated over the expected life of the options based on our stated dividend policy.

The stock option awards granted in 2012 were prior to the Spin-Off. Therefore, we estimated the value of those awards based on Mondelēz
International’s share price and assumptions.

A summary of stock option activity related to our shares for both our and Mondelēz International employees for the year ended December 27,
2014 is presented below. Stock option activity for the year ended December 27, 2014 was:

  Options Outstanding  

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price  

Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term  

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value

Balance at December 28, 2013  16,320,655  $ 35.26     
Options granted  2,601,423  55.26     
Options exercised  (3,610,773)  32.08     
Options canceled  (441,139)  44.39     
Balance at December 27, 2014  14,870,166  39.26  7 years  $ 367 million
Exercisable at December 27, 2014  9,666,165  34.02  6 years  $ 289 million
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All awards granted prior to the Spin-Off have been adjusted to reflect the conversion as of the Spin-Off. With respect to the Mondelēz
International stock options granted prior to the Spin-Off, the converted options retained the vesting schedule and expiration date of the original
stock options.

The total intrinsic value of our stock options exercised was $93 million in 2014, $69 million in 2013, and $8 million in 2012 subsequent to the
Spin-Off. Cash received from options exercised was $115 million in 2014, $96 million in 2013, and $15 million in 2012. The incremental tax
benefit realized for the tax deductions from the option exercises totaled $22 million in 2014, $20 million in 2013, and $1 million in 2012.

Restricted Stock, RSUs, and Performance Shares:
We may grant shares of restricted stock or RSUs to eligible employees and directors, giving them, in most instances, all of the rights of
shareholders, except that they may not sell, assign, pledge, or otherwise encumber the shares. Shares of restricted stock and RSUs granted to
employees are subject to forfeiture if certain employment conditions are not met. Restricted stock and RSUs generally vest on the third
anniversary of the grant date.

Performance Shares vest based on varying performance, market, and service conditions. Our Performance Shares pay accrued dividends at
the time of vesting. Shares granted in connection with Mondelēz International’s long-term incentive plan prior to the Spin-Off do not pay
dividends. The unvested shares have no voting rights.

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock, RSUs, and Performance Shares is amortized to earnings over the restriction period. We
recorded compensation expense related to restricted stock, RSUs, and Performance Shares of $77 million in 2014, $47 million in 2013, and
$11 million in 2012 subsequent to the Spin-Off. The deferred tax benefit recorded related to this compensation expense was $28 million in
2014, $17 million in 2013, and $4 million in 2012. The unamortized compensation expense related to our restricted stock, RSUs, and
Performance Shares was $97 million at December 27, 2014 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of two years.

Our restricted stock, RSU, and Performance Share activity for the year ended December 27, 2014 was:

  
Number

of Shares  

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value Per Share

Balance at December 28, 2013  4,149,797  $ 44.99
Granted  1,697,965  57.49
Vested  (1,424,627)  36.49
Forfeited  (365,483)  51.52

Balance at December 27, 2014  4,057,652  52.62

In February 2014, as part of our equity compensation program:

• We granted 0.5 million RSUs with a grant date fair value of $55.17 per share.

• We granted 0.8 million Performance Shares with a grant date fair value of $59.97 per share. These awards measure performance over
a multi-year period, during which the employee may earn shares based on internal financial metrics and the performance of our stock
relative to a defined peer group. We measured the grant date fair value using the Monte Carlo simulation model, which assists in
estimating the probability of achieving the market conditions stipulated in the award grant.

• We granted 0.1 million additional Performance Shares with a weighted average grant date fair value of $34.37 per share (based on the
original 2011 award date), which vested immediately. We granted these shares based on the final business performance rating for the
2011-2013 award cycle. These shares were adjusted and converted into new equity awards using a formula designed to preserve the
value of the awards immediately prior to the Spin-Off.

Also during 2014, we granted 0.3 million off-cycle RSUs and Performance Shares with a weighted average grant date fair value per share of
$56.80.

During 2014, 1.4 million shares of restricted stock, RSUs, and Performance Shares vested with an aggregate fair value of $79 million.

Prior to the Spin-Off, our employees participated in various Mondelēz International stock-based compensation plans. As such, we were
allocated stock-based compensation expense of $39 million in 2012 associated with these
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plans. In connection with the Spin-Off, we were required to reimburse Mondelēz International for their stock awards that were granted to our
employees, and Mondelēz International was required to reimburse us for our stock awards that were granted to their employees. We settled the
net amount we owed for this reimbursement of $55 million in March 2013.

Note 9.  Postemployment Benefit Plans

We provide a range of benefits to our employees and retirees. These include pension benefits, postretirement health care benefits, and other
postemployment benefits, as follows:

• Pension benefits – We provide pension coverage to certain U.S. and non-U.S. employees through separate plans. Local statutory
requirements govern many of these plans. Salaried and non-union hourly employees hired prior to 2009 in the U.S. and 2011 in
Canada are eligible to participate in our pension plans. We will freeze U.S. pension plans for U.S. salaried and non-union hourly
employees who are currently earning pension benefits as of December 31, 2019 and non-U.S. pension plans for non-U.S. salaried and
non-union hourly employees who are currently earning pension benefits as of December 31, 2023. We will calculate the pension
benefits using the continuing pay and service through December 31, 2019 for the U.S. plans and December 31, 2023 for the non-U.S.
plans. The pension benefits of our unionized workers are in accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement covering
their employment.

• Postretirement benefits – Our U.S. and Canadian subsidiaries provide health care and other postretirement benefits to most retirees.
U.S. salaried and non-union hourly employees hired prior to 2004 and non-U.S. salaried and non-union hourly employees hired prior to
2007 are eligible to participate in our U.S. postretirement benefit plans. The postretirement benefits of our unionized workers are in
accordance with the applicable collective bargaining agreement covering their employment.

• Other postemployment benefits – Our other postemployment benefits consist primarily of severance. These plans cover most salaried
and certain hourly employees, and their cost is charged to expense over the working life of the covered employees.
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Pension Plans

Obligations and Funded Status:
The projected benefit obligations, plan assets, and funded status of our pension plans at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 5,978  $ 7,130  $ 1,267  $ 1,418
Service cost 84  100  14  21
Interest cost 287  287  55  55
Benefits paid (518)  (316)  (80)  (79)
Actuarial losses / (gains) 1,160  (778)  153  (47)
Plan amendments 16  9  —  —
Currency —  —  (101)  (98)
Settlements (13)  (512)  —  —
Curtailments —  (3)  —  (9)
Special termination benefits —  61  —  1
Other —  —  4  5

Benefit obligation at end of year 6,994  5,978  1,312  1,267
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 5,721  5,460  1,253  1,089

Actual return on plan assets 629  654  194  144
Contributions 145  435  16  181
Benefits paid (518)  (316)  (80)  (79)
Currency —  —  (101)  (82)
Settlements (13)  (512)  —  —

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 5,964  5,721  1,282  1,253
Net pension liability recognized at end of year $ (1,030)  $ (257)  $ (30)  $ (14)

The accumulated benefit obligation, which represents benefits earned to the measurement date, was $6,777 million at December 27, 2014 and
$5,781 million at December 28, 2013 for the U.S. pension plans. The accumulated benefit obligation for the non-U.S. pension plans was $1,231
million at December 27, 2014 and $1,191 million at December 28, 2013.

The combined U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans resulted in a net pension liability of $1,060 million at December 27, 2014 and $271 million at
December 28, 2013. We recognized these amounts in our consolidated balance sheets at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 as
follows:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Other assets $ 64  $ 162
Other current liabilities (19)  (28)
Accrued pension costs (1,105)  (405)
 $ (1,060)  $ (271)
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Certain of our U.S. and non-U.S. plans are underfunded based on accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets. For these plans,
the projected benefit obligations, accumulated benefit obligations, and the fair value of plan assets at December 27, 2014 and December 28,
2013 were:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

 December 27, 2014  December 28, 2013  December 27, 2014  December 28, 2013
 (in millions)

Projected benefit obligation $ 6,994  $ 203  $ 55  $ 52
Accumulated benefit obligation 6,777  186  50  44
Fair value of plan assets 5,964  17  —  —

We used the following weighted average assumptions to determine our benefit obligations under the pension plans at December 27, 2014 and
December 28, 2013:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

 December 27, 2014  December 28, 2013  December 27, 2014  December 28, 2013

Discount rate 4.17%  4.94%  3.87%  4.56%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00%  4.00%  3.00%  3.00%

Components of Net Pension Cost / (Benefit):
Net pension cost / (benefit) consisted of the following for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

 For the Years Ended  For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

 (in millions)

Service cost $ 84  $ 100  $ 32  $ 14  $ 21  $ 12
Interest cost 287  287  70  55  55  32
Expected return on plan assets (325)  (315)  (105)  (60)  (57)  (43)
Actuarial losses / (gains) 783  (1,154)  (41)  12  (128)  28
Amortization of prior service

costs 5  4  1  —  —  —
Settlements 2  69  —  —  —  —
Curtailments 3  (3)  —  —  (9)  —
Special termination benefits —  61  —  —  1  —

Net pension cost / (benefit) $ 839  $ (951)  $ (43)  $ 21  $ (117)  $ 29

We remeasure all of our postemployment benefit plans at least annually at the end of our fiscal year. We define the costs or benefits resulting
from the change in discount rates, the difference between our estimated and actual return on plan assets, and other assumption changes
driven by changes in the law or other external factors as market-based impacts from postemployment benefit plans. Market-based impacts are
included in actuarial losses / (gains) and in settlements in the table above. We disclose market-based impacts separately in order to provide
additional transparency of our operating results.

The remeasurement as of December 27, 2014, resulted in an aggregate expense from market-based impacts of $784 million primarily driven
by a 75 basis point weighted average decrease in the discount rate and a $429 million impact from the adoption of the new Society of Actuaries
RP-2014 mortality tables, partially offset by excess asset returns. We recorded $477 million of the expense from market-based impacts in cost
of sales and $307 million in selling, general and administrative expenses in accordance with our policy for allocating employee costs.

The remeasurement as of December 28, 2013, resulted in an aggregate benefit from market-based impacts of $1,268 million primarily driven
by an 80 basis point weighted average increase in the discount rate and excess asset returns. We recorded $707 million of the benefit from
market-based impacts in cost of sales and $561 million

40



in selling, general and administrative expenses. The annual remeasurement resulted in a benefit from market-based impacts of $29 million as
of December 29, 2012.

In addition, as a result of the December 28, 2013 remeasurement, we capitalized an aggregate benefit of $34 million from market-based
impacts related to our pension plans into inventory consistent with our capitalization policy. During 2014, the entire benefit previously
capitalized was recognized in cost of sales. At December 27, 2014, we capitalized an aggregate expense of $41 million from market-based
impacts into inventory.

Net pension costs included settlement losses of $69 million in 2013 related to retiring employees who elected lump-sum payments. Net pension
costs also included special termination benefits associated with our voluntary early retirement program of $62 million in 2013, which were
included in our Restructuring Program.

As of December 27, 2014, we expected to amortize an estimated $7 million of prior service costs from accumulated other comprehensive
earnings / (losses) into net periodic pension cost for the combined U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans during 2015.

We used the following weighted average assumptions to determine our net pension cost for the years ended December 27, 2014,
December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

Discount rate 4.86%  4.34%  3.85%  4.56%  4.00%  4.03%
Expected rate of return on

plan assets 5.75%  5.75%  8.00%  5.00%  5.00%  7.04%
Rate of compensation

increase 4.00%  4.00%  4.00%  3.00%  3.00%  3.00%

Year-end discount rates for our U.S. and non-U.S. plans were developed from a model portfolio of high quality, fixed-income debt instruments
with durations that match the expected future cash flows of the benefit obligations. We determine our expected rate of return on plan assets
from the plan assets’ historical long-term investment performance, current and future asset allocation, and estimates of future long-term returns
by asset class.

Plan Assets:
The fair value of pension plan assets at December 27, 2014 was determined using the following fair value measurements:

Asset Category Total Fair Value  

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)  

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

 (in millions)

Non-U.S. equity securities $ 544  $ 526  $ 18  $ —
Pooled funds equity securities 2,694  6  2,688  —

Total equity securities 3,238  532  2,706  —
Government bonds 776  625  151  —
Pooled funds fixed-income securities 876  —  876  —
Corporate bonds and other fixed-income securities 2,061  —  2,061  —

Total fixed-income securities 3,713  625  3,088  —
Real estate 235  —  —  235
Certain insurance contracts 53  —  —  53
Other 7  7  —  —
Total $ 7,246  $ 1,164  $ 5,794  $ 288
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The fair value of pension plan assets at December 28, 2013 was determined using the following fair value measurements:

Asset Category Total Fair Value  

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)  

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

 (in millions)

Non-U.S. equity securities $ 645  $ 645  $ —  $ —
Pooled funds equity securities 3,123  6  3,117  —

Total equity securities 3,768  651  3,117  —
Government bonds 719  621  98  —
Pooled funds fixed-income securities 642  —  642  —
Corporate bonds and other fixed-income securities 1,566  1  1,565  —

Total fixed-income securities 2,927  622  2,305  —
Real estate 214  —  —  214
Certain insurance contracts 57  —  —  57
Other 8  8  —  —
Total $ 6,974  $ 1,281  $ 5,422  $ 271

Fair value measurements:
• Level 1 – includes primarily non-U.S. equity securities and certain government bonds valued using quoted prices in active markets.
• Level 2 – includes primarily pooled funds valued using net asset values of participation units held in common collective trusts, as

reported by the managers of the trusts and as supported by the unit prices of actual purchase and sale transactions. Level 2 plan
assets also include corporate bonds and other fixed-income securities, valued using independent observable market inputs, such as
matrix pricing, yield curves, and indices.

• Level 3 – includes primarily real estate and certain insurance contracts valued using unobservable inputs that reflect the plans’
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets, based on the best information available. Fair value estimates for
real estate investments are calculated using the present value of future cash flows expected to be received from the investments,
based on valuation methodologies such as appraisals, local market conditions, and current and projected operating performance. Fair
value estimates for certain insurance contracts are reported at contract value.

Changes in our Level 3 plan assets, which are recorded in operations, for the year ended December 27, 2014 included:

Asset Category

December 28,
2013

Balance  

Net Realized
and Unrealized
Gains/(Losses)  

Net Purchases,
Issuances and

Settlements  

Net Transfers
Into/(Out of)

Level 3  

December 27,
2014

Balance
 (in millions)

Real estate $ 214  $ 22  $ (1)  $ —  $ 235
Certain insurance contracts 57  1  (5)  —  53
Total Level 3 investments $ 271  $ 23  $ (6)  $ —  $ 288
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Changes in our Level 3 plan assets, which are recorded in operations, for the year ended December 28, 2013 included:

Asset Category

December 29,
2012

Balance  

Net Realized
and Unrealized
Gains/(Losses)  

Net Purchases,
Issuances and

Settlements  

Net Transfers
Into/(Out of)

Level 3  

December 28,
2013

Balance
 (in millions)

Corporate bonds and other fixed-income
securities $ 7  $ —  $ (2)  $ (5)  $ —

Real estate 186  27  1  —  214
Certain insurance contracts 66  4  (13)  —  57
Total Level 3 investments $ 259  $ 31  $ (14)  $ (5)  $ 271

The percentage of fair value of pension plan assets at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 was:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans

Asset Category
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013

Equity securities 44%  52%  48%  61%
Fixed-income securities 51%  43%  51%  38%
Real estate 4%  4%  —%  —%
Certain insurance contracts and other 1%  1%  1%  1%
Total 100%  100%  100%  100%

During 2013, we began a new liability-driven investment strategy for pension assets. This strategy, which will be phased in over time, better
aligns our pension assets with the projected benefit obligation to reduce volatility by targeting an investment of approximately 80% of our U.S.
plan assets in fixed-income securities and approximately 20% in equity securities. The strategy uses actively managed and indexed U.S.
investment grade fixed-income securities (which constitute 97% or more of fixed-income securities) with lesser allocations to high yield fixed-
income securities, indexed U.S. equity securities, and actively managed and indexed international equity securities.

For pension plans outside the U.S., the investment strategy is subject to local regulations and the asset / liability profiles of the plans in each
individual country. In aggregate, the long-term asset allocation targets of our non-U.S. plans are broadly characterized as a mix of 70% fixed-
income securities and 30% equity securities.

We attempt to maintain our target asset allocation by rebalancing between asset classes as we make contributions and monthly benefit
payments.

Employer Contributions:
We estimate that 2015 pension contributions will be approximately $170 million to our U.S. plans and approximately $25 million to our non-U.S.
plans. Our actual contributions may differ due to many factors, including changes in tax, employee benefit, or other laws, tax deductibility,
significant differences between expected and actual pension asset performance or interest rates, or other factors. In 2014, we contributed $145
million to our U.S. pension plans and $12 million to our non-U.S. pension plans. In addition, employees contributed $4 million in 2014 to our
non-U.S. plans and $5 million in 2013.

Future Benefit Payments:
The estimated future benefit payments from our pension plans at December 27, 2014 were:

 U.S. Plans  Non-U.S. Plans
 (in millions)

2015 $ 401  $ 66
2016 407  66
2017 418  66
2018 426  66
2019 434  67
2020-2024 2,268  355
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Other Costs:
We sponsor and contribute to employee savings plans that cover eligible salaried, non-union, and union employees. Our contributions and
costs are determined by the matching of employee contributions, as defined by the plans. Amounts charged to expense for defined contribution
plans totaled $70 million in 2014, $61 million in 2013, and $12 million in 2012 subsequent to the Spin-Off.

Postretirement Benefit Plans

Obligations:
Our postretirement health care plans are not funded. The changes in and the amount of the accrued benefit obligations at December 27, 2014
and December 28, 2013 were:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Accrued benefit obligations at beginning of year $ 3,277  $ 3,738
Service cost 26  35
Interest cost 148  143
Benefits paid (190)  (188)
Actuarial losses / (gains) 418  (403)
Plan amendments (75)  (40)
Currency (14)  (14)
Special termination benefits —  6
Other 1  —

Accrued benefit obligations at end of year $ 3,591  $ 3,277

We used the following weighted average assumptions to determine our postretirement benefit obligations at December 27, 2014 and
December 28, 2013:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013

Discount rate 4.08%  4.69%
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 6.91%  7.28%
Ultimate trend rate 5.00%  5.03%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2023  2023

Year-end discount rates for our U.S. and non-U.S. plans were developed from a model portfolio of high-quality, fixed-income debt instruments
with durations that match the expected future cash flows of the benefit obligations. Our expected health care cost trend rate is based on
historical costs.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant impact on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage-point
change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects as of December 27, 2014:

 One-Percentage-Point

 Increase  Decrease
 (in millions)

Effect on annual service and interest cost $ 25  $ (20)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation 433  (355)
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Components of Net Postretirement Health Care Cost / (Benefit):
Net postretirement health care cost / (benefit) consisted of the following for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013, and
December 29, 2012:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Service cost $ 26  $ 35  $ 8
Interest cost 148  143  32
Actuarial losses / (gains) 370  (376)  188
Amortization of prior service credits (28)  (26)  (7)
Special termination benefits —  5  —
Net postretirement health care cost / (benefit) $ 516  $ (219)  $ 221

As a result of the 2014 annual remeasurement of our postretirement health care plans, we recorded an expense from market-based impacts of
$556 million as of December 27, 2014, primarily driven by a 60 basis point weighted average decrease in the discount rate and a $328 million
impact from the adoption of the new Society of Actuaries RP-2014 mortality tables. We recorded $424 million of the expense from market-
based impacts in cost of sales and $132 million in selling, general and administrative expenses in accordance with our policy for allocating
employee costs. Market-based impacts are included in actuarial losses / (gains) in the table above.

As a result of the 2013 annual remeasurement of our postretirement health care plans, we recorded a benefit from market-based impacts of
$292 million as of December 28, 2013, primarily driven by an 80 basis point weighted average increase in the discount rate. We recorded
expense from market-based impacts of $250 million as of December 29, 2012.

In addition, as a result of the 2013 annual remeasurement, we recorded a benefit from market-based impacts of $15 million into inventory as of
December 28, 2013 consistent with our capitalization policy. During 2014, the entire benefit previously capitalized was recognized in cost of
sales. At December 27, 2014, we capitalized an aggregate expense of $36 million from market-based impacts into inventory.

The special termination benefits were associated with our voluntary early retirement program in 2013.

As of December 27, 2014, we expected to amortize an estimated $33 million of prior service credits from accumulated other comprehensive
earnings / (losses) into net postretirement health care costs during 2015.

We used the following weighted average assumptions to determine our net postretirement health care cost for the years ended December 27,
2014, December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

Discount rate 4.69%  3.89%  3.61%
Health care cost trend rate 7.28%  7.53%  7.06%

Future Benefit Payments:
Our estimated future benefit payments for our postretirement health care plans at December 27, 2014 were:

 (in millions)

2015 $ 196
2016 196
2017 198
2018 199
2019 201

2020-2024 1,019
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Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

Obligations:
Our other postemployment plans are generally not funded. The changes in and the amount of the accrued benefit obligation at December 27,
2014 and December 28, 2013 were:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 55  $ 63
Service cost 2  2
Interest cost 2  2
Benefits paid (10)  (6)
Actuarial losses / (gains) 19  (2)
Other (4)  (4)

Accrued benefit obligation at end of year $ 64  $ 55

We used the following weighted average assumptions to determine our other postemployment benefit obligations at December 27, 2014 and
December 28, 2013:

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013

Discount rate 2.86%  3.10%
Assumed ultimate annual turnover rate 0.50%  0.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00%  4.00%

Other postemployment costs arising from actions that offer employees benefits in excess of those specified in the respective plans are charged
to expense when incurred.

Components of Net Other Postemployment Cost:
Net other postemployment cost consisted of the following for the years ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013, and December 29,
2012:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

    
Service cost $ 2  $ 2  $ 4
Interest cost 2  2  2
Actuarial losses / (gains) 14  (2)  1
Other 5  (1)  —
Net other postemployment cost $ 23  $ 1  $ 7

As of December 27, 2014, we did not expect to amortize any prior service costs / (credits) for the other postemployment benefit plans from
accumulated other comprehensive earnings / (losses) into net postemployment costs during 2015.

Our Participation in Mondelēz International’s Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans and the Spin-Off Impact

Prior to the Spin-off, Mondelēz International provided defined benefit pension, postretirement health care, defined contribution, and
multiemployer pension and medical benefits to our eligible employees and retirees. As such, we applied the multiemployer plan accounting
approach and these liabilities were not reflected in our consolidated balance sheets. We provided pension coverage for certain employees of
our Canadian operations through separate plans and certain pension and postemployment benefits of our Canadian operations, which were
included in our financial statements prior to the Spin-Off. As part of the Spin-Off, the plans were split and we assumed the obligations
previously provided by Mondelēz International. Accordingly, Mondelēz International transferred to us the plan assets and liabilities associated
with our active, retired, and other former employees, including liabilities for
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most of the retired North American Mondelēz International employees. We assumed net benefit plan liabilities of $5.5 billion from Mondelēz
International, which was in addition to the $0.1 billion of net benefit plan liabilities we had previously reported in our historical financial
statements, for a total liability of $5.6 billion on October 1, 2012.

Total Mondelēz International benefit plan costs allocated to us were $491 million in the first nine months of 2012 prior to the Spin-Off. The
expense allocations for these benefits were determined based on a review of personnel by business unit and based on allocations of corporate
or other shared functional personnel. These allocated costs are reflected in our cost of sales and selling, general and administrative expenses.
These costs were funded through intercompany transactions with Mondelēz International and were reflected within the parent company
investment equity balance. Our allocated expenses in connection with the pension plans were $283 million in 2012. Our allocated expenses in
connection with the postretirement plans were $142 million in 2012.

Note 10.  Financial Instruments

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments:
The fair values and the levels within the fair value hierarchy of derivative instruments recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at
December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were:

  December 27, 2014

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)  

Significant
Other Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)  Total Fair Value

  Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities

               
Derivatives designated as

hedging instruments:                 
Commodity contracts  $ 2  $ 5  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 2  $ 5
Foreign exchange contracts  —  —  80  —  —  —  80  —
Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments:                 
Commodity contracts  46  99  —  4  —  —  46  103
Total fair value  $ 48  $ 104  $ 80  $ 4  $ —  $ —  $ 128  $ 108

  December 28, 2013

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets

for Identical
Assets

(Level 1)  

Significant
Other Observable

Inputs
(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)  Total Fair Value

  Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities  Assets  Liabilities

                 
Derivatives designated as

hedging instruments:                 
Commodity contracts  $ 5  $ 4  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 5  $ 4
Foreign exchange contracts  —  —  48  —  —  —  48  —
Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments:                 
Commodity contracts  39  20  1  1  —  —  40  21
Total fair value  $ 44  $ 24  $ 49  $ 1  $ —  $ —  $ 93  $ 25

The fair values of our asset derivatives are recorded within other current assets and other assets. The fair values of our liability derivatives are
recorded within other current liabilities.

Level 1 financial assets and liabilities consist of commodity futures and options contracts and are valued using quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities.
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Level 2 financial assets and liabilities consist of commodity forwards and foreign exchange forwards. Commodity forwards are valued using an
income approach based on the observable market commodity index prices less the contract rate multiplied by the notional amount. Foreign
exchange forwards are valued using an income approach based on observable market forward rates less the contract rate multiplied by the
notional amount. Our calculation of the fair value of financial instruments takes into consideration the risk of nonperformance, including
counterparty credit risk.

Derivative Volume:
The net notional values of our derivative instruments at December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were:

 Notional Amount

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013
 (in millions)

Commodity contracts $ 1,543  $ 1,349
Foreign exchange contracts 1,074  901

Cash Flow Hedges:
Cash flow hedge activity, net of income taxes, within accumulated other comprehensive losses included:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Accumulated other comprehensive losses at beginning of period $ (129)  $ (152)  $ (18)
Unrealized gains / (losses):      

Commodity contracts 18  (16)  (57)
Foreign exchange contracts 38  36  (5)
Interest rate contracts —  —  (137)

 56  20  (199)
Transfer of realized (gains) / losses to earnings:      

Commodity contracts (18)  26  49
Foreign exchange contracts (41)  (31)  1
Interest rate contracts 7  8  19

 (52)  3  69
Transfer of realized losses from Mondelēz International —  —  (4)

Accumulated other comprehensive losses at end of period $ (125)  $ (129)  $ (152)

The gains / (losses) on ineffectiveness recognized in pre-tax earnings were:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Commodity contracts $ 1  $ —  $ (4)
Interest rate contracts —  —  (23)
Total $ 1  $ —  $ (27)

We record the pre-tax gain or loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive losses and the gain or loss on ineffectiveness in:

• cost of sales for commodity contracts;
• cost of sales for foreign exchange contracts related to forecasted transactions; and
• interest and other expense, net for foreign exchange contracts related to intercompany loans and interest rate contracts.
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Based on our valuation at December 27, 2014, we would expect to transfer unrealized losses of $4 million (net of taxes) for commodity cash
flow hedges, unrealized gains of $17 million (net of taxes) for foreign currency cash flow hedges, and unrealized losses of $8 million (net of
taxes) for interest rate cash flow hedges to earnings during the next 12 months.

Hedge Coverage:
At December 27, 2014, we had hedged forecasted transactions for the following durations:

• commodity transactions for periods not exceeding the next two years;
• foreign currency transactions for periods not exceeding the next four years; and
• interest rate transactions for periods not exceeding the next 28 years.

Economic Hedges:
Gains recorded in pre-tax earnings for economic hedges that are not designated as hedging instruments included:

 For the Years Ended  Location of
(Losses) / Gains

Recognized
Earnings 

December 27, 
2014  

December 28, 
2013  

December 29, 
2012  

 (in millions)   

Commodity contracts $ 26  $ 14  $ 36  Cost of sales

Foreign exchange contracts 2  —  —  
Selling, general and

administrative expenses
 $ 28  $ 14  $ 36   

Note 11.  Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings:
We are routinely involved in legal proceedings, claims, and governmental inquiries, inspections or investigations (“Legal Matters”) arising in the
ordinary course of our business.

We have been advised by the staff of the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) that they are investigating activities related to the
trading of December 2011 wheat futures contracts. These activities arose prior to the Spin-Off and involve the business now owned and
operated by Mondelēz International or its affiliates. We are cooperating with the staff in its investigation. In October 2014, the staff advised us
that the CFTC intends to commence a formal action. We and Mondelēz International continue to seek resolution of this matter. Our Separation
and Distribution Agreement with Mondelēz International dated as of September 27, 2012, governs the allocation between Mondelēz
International and us and, accordingly, Mondelēz International will predominantly bear the costs of this matter and any monetary penalties or
other payments that the CFTC may impose. We do not expect this matter to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results
of operations.

While we cannot predict with certainty the results of Legal Matters in which we are currently involved or may in the future be involved, we do
not expect that the ultimate costs to resolve any of the Legal Matters that are currently pending will have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or results of operations.

Third-Party Guarantees:
We have third-party guarantees primarily covering long-term obligations related to leased properties. The carrying amounts of our third-party
guarantees was $22 million at December 27, 2014 and $24 million at December 28, 2013. The maximum potential payment under these
guarantees was $42 million at December 27, 2014 and $53 million at December 28, 2013. Substantially all of these guarantees expire at
various times through 2027.

49



Leases:
Rental expenses were $148 million in 2014, $176 million in 2013, and $150 million in 2012. As of December 27, 2014, minimum rental
commitments under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at year-end were (in millions):

2015 $ 106
2016 85
2017 62
2018 49
2019 41
Thereafter 84
Total $ 427

Note 12.  Income Taxes

Earnings before income taxes and the provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

  For the Years Ended

  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

  (in millions)

Earnings before income taxes:       
United States  $ 1,117  $ 3,596  $ 2,156
Outside United States  289  494  297

Total  $ 1,406  $ 4,090  $ 2,453

       

Provision for income taxes:       
United States federal:       

Current  $ 678  $ 591  $ 209
Deferred  (336)  566  424

  342  1,157  633
State and local:       

Current  (34)  34  54
Deferred  (26)  61  43

  (60)  95  97
Total United States  282  1,252  730
Outside United States:       

Current  80  42  78
Deferred  1  81  3

Total outside United States  81  123  81
Total provision for income taxes  $ 363  $ 1,375  $ 811
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The effective income tax rate on pre-tax earnings differed from the U.S. federal statutory rate for the following reasons :

  For the Years Ended

  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

U.S. federal statutory rate  35.0 %  35.0 %  35.0 %
Increase / (decrease) resulting from:       

U.S. state and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefit  0.2 %  1.7 %  2.3 %
Domestic manufacturing deduction  (4.6)%  (1.2)%  (2.7)%
Foreign rate differences  (2.2)%  (1.1)%  (1.1)%
Changes in uncertain tax positions  (0.9)%  0.2 %  (0.8)%
Other  (1.7)%  (1.0)%  0.4 %

Effective tax rate  25.8 %  33.6 %  33.1 %

Our 2014 effective tax rate was favorably impacted by $64 million of domestic manufacturing deductions, favorable tax rates in foreign
jurisdictions, most significantly Canada, changes in uncertain tax positions and the net impact of other discrete tax items.

Our 2013 effective tax rate was favorably impacted by $49 million of domestic manufacturing deductions, favorable tax rates in foreign
jurisdictions, most significantly Canada, and the net impact of other discrete tax items. This favorability was partially offset by $68 million of
state and local taxes.

Our 2012 effective tax rate was favorably impacted by $66 million of domestic manufacturing deductions, favorable tax rates in foreign
jurisdictions, most significantly Canada, and changes in uncertain tax positions. This favorability was partially offset by $56 million of state and
local taxes.

The calculation of the percentage point impact of domestic manufacturing deductions, uncertain tax positions and other discrete items on the
effective tax rate was affected by earnings before income taxes. Fluctuations in earnings could impact comparability of reconciling items
between periods.

Our unrecognized tax benefits of $256 million at December 27, 2014 are included in other current liabilities and other liabilities. If we had
recognized all of these benefits, the net impact on our income tax provision would have been $167 million. Of the net unrecognized tax
benefits, approximately $100 million to $140 million are expected to be resolved within the next 12 months.

The changes in our unrecognized tax benefits were:

  For the Years Ended

  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

  (in millions)

Beginning of year  $ 259  $ 258  $ 371
Increases from prior period tax positions  26  2  11
Decreases from prior period tax positions  (74)  (5)  (90)
Decreases from statute of limitations expirations  (14)  (28)  —
Increases from current period tax positions  67  39  16
Net transfers to Mondelēz International  —  —  (9)
Decreases relating to settlements with taxing authorities  (3)  (3)  (33)
Currency and other  (5)  (4)  (8)

End of year  $ 256  $ 259  $ 258

We include accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in our tax provision. Our provision for income taxes included a
benefit of $30 million in 2014, expense of $13 million in 2013, and expense of $18 million in 2012 for interest and penalties. Accrued interest
and penalties were $41 million as of December 27, 2014, and $74 million as of December 28, 2013.
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We have entered into a tax sharing agreement with Mondelēz International, which provides that for periods prior to October 1, 2012, Mondelēz
International is liable for and will indemnify us against all U.S. federal income taxes and substantially all foreign income taxes, excluding
Canadian income taxes; and that we are liable for and will indemnify Mondelēz International against U.S. state income taxes and Canadian
federal and provincial income taxes. 

Our U.S. operations were included in Mondelēz International’s U.S. federal consolidated income tax returns for tax periods through October 1,
2012. In August 2014, Mondelēz International reached a final resolution on a U.S. federal income tax audit of the 2007-2009 tax years. The
U.S. federal statute of limitations remains open for tax year 2010 and forward, and federal income tax returns for 2010-2012 are currently under
examination. As noted above we are indemnified for U.S. federal income taxes related to these periods.

We are regularly examined by federal, state and foreign authorities. We are currently under income tax examinations by the IRS for the post
Spin-Off period 2012-2014. Our income tax filings are also currently under examination by tax authorities in various U.S. state and foreign
jurisdictions. U.S. state and local and foreign jurisdictions have statutes of limitations generally ranging from three to five years unless we agree
to an extension. In Canada, our only significant foreign jurisdiction, the earliest open tax year is 2007.

At December 27, 2014, we had outside tax basis in excess of book basis in certain foreign subsidiaries in which earnings are indefinitely
reinvested. As of that date, applicable U.S. federal income taxes and foreign withholding taxes had not been provided on approximately $578
million of unremitted earnings of such foreign subsidiaries. If such earnings were to be remitted, our incremental tax cost would be
approximately $118 million.

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to deferred income tax assets and liabilities consisted of the following at December 27,
2014 and December 28, 2013:

  
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013

  (in millions)

Deferred income tax assets:     
Pension benefits  $ 407  $ 104
Postretirement benefits  1,355  1,238
Other employee benefits  113  122
Other  471  497

Total deferred income tax assets  2,346  1,961
Valuation allowance  (20)  (3)
Net deferred income tax assets  $ 2,326  $ 1,958
Deferred income tax liabilities:     

Trade names  $ (828)  $ (828)
Property, plant and equipment  (979)  (949)
Debt exchange  (350)  (384)
Other  (66)  (65)

Total deferred income tax liabilities  (2,223)  (2,226)
Net deferred income tax assets / (liabilities)  $ 103  $ (268)

Note 13.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses

Total accumulated other comprehensive losses consists of net earnings / (losses) and other changes in business equity from sources other
than shareholders. It includes foreign currency translation gains and losses, postemployment benefit plan adjustments, and unrealized gains
and losses from derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges.

52



The components of, and changes in, accumulated other comprehensive losses were as follows (net of tax):

 

Foreign
Currency

Adjustments  

Postemployment
Benefit Plan
Adjustments  

Derivative
Hedging

Adjustments  

Total
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive
Losses

 (in millions)

Balance at December 29, 2012 $ (359)  $ 51  $ (152)  $ (460)
Other comprehensive (losses) / gains before

reclassifications (68)  19  20  (29)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other

comprehensive losses —  (13)  3  (10)
Net current-period other comprehensive

(losses) / earnings (68)  6  23  (39)
Balance at December 28, 2013 $ (427)  $ 57  $ (129)  $ (499)

Other comprehensive (losses) / gains before
reclassifications (91)  36  56  1

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive losses —  (12)  (52)  (64)

Net current-period other comprehensive
(losses) / earnings (91)  24  4  (63)

Balance at December 27, 2014 $ (518)  $ 81  $ (125)  $ (562)

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive losses in the years ended December 27, 2014 and December 28, 2013 were as
follows:

 
Amount Reclassified from Accumulated

Other Comprehensive Losses   
 For the Years Ended   

Details about Accumulated Other Comprehensive Losses Components
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  

Affected Line Item in
the Statement Where

Net Income is Presented

 (in millions)   

Derivative hedging (gains) / losses      
Commodity contracts $ (30)  $ 42  Cost of sales
Foreign exchange contracts (17)  (11)  Cost of sales
Foreign exchange contracts (50)  (39)  Interest and other expense, net
Interest rate contracts 13  12  Interest and other expense, net

Total before tax (84)  4  Earnings before income taxes
Tax benefit / (expense) 32  (1)  Provision for income taxes

Net of tax $ (52)  $ 3  Net earnings

      

Postemployment benefit plan adjustments      
Amortization of prior service credits $ (23)  $ (22)  (1) 
Curtailments 3  —  (1) 

Total before tax (20)  (22)  Earnings before income taxes
Tax benefit 8  9  Provision for income taxes

Net of tax $ (12)  $ (13)  Net earnings

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive losses components are included in the computation of net periodic pension and postretirement health care costs. See Note
9, Postemployment Benefit Plans, for additional information.
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Note 14.  Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

We grant shares of restricted stock and RSUs that are considered to be participating securities. Due to the presence of participating securities,
we have calculated our EPS using the two-class method.

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions, except per share data)

Basic EPS:      
Net earnings $ 1,043  $ 2,715  $ 1,642
Earnings allocated to participating securities 5  12  5

Earnings available to common shareholders - basic $ 1,038  $ 2,703  $ 1,637

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 593  594  591
Net earnings per share $ 1.75  $ 4.55  $ 2.77

Diluted EPS:      
Net earnings $ 1,043  $ 2,715  $ 1,642
Earnings allocated to participating securities 5  12  5

Earnings available to common shareholders - diluted $ 1,038  $ 2,703  $ 1,637

Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding 593  594  591
Effect of dilutive securities 5  5  5
Weighted average shares of common stock, including dilutive effect 598  599  596
Net earnings per share $ 1.74  $ 4.51  $ 2.75

We excluded antidilutive stock options and Performance Shares from our calculation of weighted average shares of common stock outstanding
for diluted EPS of 2.0 million for the year ended December 27, 2014 and 0.3 million for the year ended December 28, 2013. Antidilutive stock
options and Performance Shares were zero for the year ended December 29, 2012.

Note 15.  Segment Reporting

We manufacture and market food and beverage products, including cheese, meats, refreshment beverages, coffee, packaged dinners,
refrigerated meals, snack nuts, dressings, and other grocery products, primarily in the United States and Canada. We manage and report our
operating results through five reportable segments: Cheese,  Beverages & Snack Nuts, Refrigerated Meals, Meal Solutions, and International.
Our remaining businesses, including our U.S. and Canadian Foodservice businesses, are aggregated and disclosed as “Other Businesses”.

Management uses segment operating income to evaluate segment performance and allocate resources. We believe it is appropriate to
disclose this measure to help investors analyze segment performance and trends. Segment operating income excludes the following items for
each of the periods presented:

• Market-based impacts and certain other components of our postemployment benefit plans (which are components of cost of sales and
selling, general and administrative expenses) because we centrally manage postemployment benefit plan funding decisions and the
determination of discount rates, expected rate of return on plan assets, and other actuarial assumptions.

• Unrealized gains and losses on hedging activities (which are a component of cost of sales) in order to provide better transparency of
our segment operating results. Unrealized gains and losses on hedging activities, which includes unrealized gains and losses on our
derivatives not designated as hedging instruments as well as the ineffective portion of unrealized gains and losses on our derivatives
designated as hedging instruments, are recorded in Corporate until realized. Once realized, the gains and losses are recorded within
the applicable segment operating results.

• Certain general corporate expenses (which are a component of selling, general and administrative expenses) and cost savings
initiatives expenses (which are components of asset impairment and exit costs, cost of sales, and selling, general and administrative
expenses).
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Furthermore, we centrally manage interest and other expense, net. Accordingly, we do not present these items by segment because they are
excluded from the segment profitability measures that management reviews.

Management does not use assets by segment to evaluate performance or allocate resources and therefore, we do not calculate or disclose
assets by segment.

Our segment net revenues and earnings consisted of:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Net revenues:      
Cheese $ 4,066  $ 3,925  $ 3,829
Beverages & Snack Nuts 3,628  3,664  3,711
Refrigerated Meals 3,433  3,334  3,280
Meal Solutions 3,216  3,423  3,538
International 2,304  2,372  2,318
Other Businesses 1,558  1,500  1,595

Net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  $ 18,271

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012
 (in millions)

Earnings before income taxes:      
Operating income:      

Cheese $ 675  $ 721  $ 716
Beverages & Snack Nuts 545  504  416
Refrigerated Meals 409  364  409
Meal Solutions 1,073  1,130  1,259
International 451  463  371
Other Businesses 188  172  143

Market-based impacts to postemployment benefit plans (1,341)  1,561  (223)
Certain other postemployment benefit plan income / (expense) 164  61  (82)
Unrealized (losses) / gains on hedging activities (79)  21  13
General corporate expenses (88)  (116)  (49)
Cost savings initiatives expenses (107)  (290)  (303)

Operating income 1,890  4,591  2,670
Interest and other expense, net (484)  (501)  (258)
Royalty income from Mondelēz International —  —  41

Earnings before income taxes $ 1,406  $ 4,090  $ 2,453
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Depreciation expense and capital expenditures by segment were:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

 (in millions)

Depreciation Expense:      
Cheese $ 57  $ 92  $ 119
Beverages & Snack Nuts 85  82  81
Refrigerated Meals 87  84  76
Meal Solutions 85  64  85
International 37  38  31
Other Businesses 33  33  36

Total depreciation expense $ 384  $ 393  $ 428

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

 (in millions)

Capital expenditures:      
Cheese $ 152  $ 150  $ 84
Beverages & Snack Nuts 136  171  146
Refrigerated Meals 110  80  83
Meal Solutions 66  76  83
International 53  60  33
Other Businesses 18  20  11

Total capital expenditures $ 535  $ 557  $ 440

Concentration of risk:

Our largest customer, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., accounted for approximately 26% of net revenues in 2014 and in 2013, and 25% in 2012.

Geographic data for net revenues and long-lived assets were:

 For the Years Ended

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013  
December 29, 

2012

 (in millions)

Net revenues:      
United States $ 15,753  $ 15,676  $ 15,752
Canada 2,177  2,302  2,306
Exports 275  240  213

Total net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  $ 18,271

 
December 27, 

2014  
December 28, 

2013

 (in millions)

Long-lived assets:    
United States $ 16,536  $ 16,516
Canada 1,620  1,724

Total long-lived assets $ 18,156  $ 18,240
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Net revenues by product categories were:

 For the Years Ended

 December 27, 2014  December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012

 (in millions)

Cheese and dairy $ 5,954  $ 5,744  $ 5,591
Meat and meat alternatives 2,691  2,643  2,659
Meals 2,033  2,047  1,973
Refreshment beverages 1,762  1,817  1,863
Enhancers 1,601  1,705  1,868
Coffee 1,456  1,460  1,450
Desserts, toppings and baking 1,042  1,142  1,213
Nuts and salted snacks 1,036  997  986
Other 630  663  668
Total net revenues $ 18,205  $ 18,218  $ 18,271

Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

  2014 Quarters

  First  Second  Third  Fourth

  (in millions, except per share data)

Net revenues  $ 4,362  $ 4,747  $ 4,400  $ 4,696
Gross profit  $ 1,560  $ 1,521  $ 1,292  $ 472
Net earnings / (loss)  $ 513  $ 482  $ 446  $ (398)
Per share data:         

Basic earnings / (loss) per share  $ 0.86  $ 0.81  $ 0.75  $ (0.68)
Diluted earnings / (loss) per share  $ 0.85  $ 0.80  $ 0.74  $ (0.68)
Dividends declared  $ 0.525  $ 0.525  $ —  $ 1.10
Market price – high  $ 56.56  $ 60.60  $ 61.10  $ 64.47

  – low  $ 50.54  $ 55.47  $ 53.33  $ 53.63

  2013 Quarters

  First  Second  Third  Fourth

  (in millions, except per share data)

Net revenues  $ 4,513  $ 4,716  $ 4,394  $ 4,595
Gross profit  $ 1,470  $ 1,936  $ 1,486  $ 1,932
Net earnings  $ 456  $ 829  $ 500  $ 931
Per share data:         

Basic earnings per share  $ 0.77  $ 1.39  $ 0.84  $ 1.56
Diluted earnings per share  $ 0.76  $ 1.38  $ 0.83  $ 1.54
Dividends declared  $ 0.50  $ 0.50  $ —  $ 1.05
Market price – high  $ 52.29  $ 57.84  $ 58.76  $ 55.93

  – low  $ 44.16  $ 49.79  $ 51.20  $ 51.72

Basic and diluted EPS are computed independently for each of the periods presented. Accordingly, the sum of the quarterly EPS amounts may
not equal the total for the year.
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Kraft Foods Group, Inc.
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

For the Years Ended December 27, 2014, December 28, 2013, and December 29, 2012
(in millions)

 

Col. A  Col. B  Col. C  Col. D  Col. E

    Additions     

Description  

Balance at
Beginning
of Period  

Charged to
Costs and
Expenses  

Charged to
Other

Accounts  Deductions  

Balance at
End of
Period

      (a)  (b)   

2014:           
Allowances related to accounts

receivable  $ 26  $ (2)  $ —  $ 3  $ 21
Allowance for deferred taxes  3  20  —  3  20

  $ 29  $ 18  $ —  $ 6  $ 41
2013:           

Allowances related to accounts
receivable  $ 28  $ 1  $ —  $ 3  $ 26

Allowance for deferred taxes  26  —  —  23  3
  $ 54  $ 1  $ —  $ 26  $ 29
2012:           

Allowances related to accounts
receivable  $ 23  $ 9  $ —  $ 4  $ 28

Allowance for deferred taxes  34  (4)  —  4  26
  $ 57  $ 5  $ —  $ 8  $ 54

Notes:
(a) Primarily related to divestitures and currency translation.
(b) Represents charges for which allowances were created.
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